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Financial Summary

MEEE

HE12A3HILLEE
For the Year Ended December 31
20234 20224 20214 2020%F 20194
AR¥ETRE AREFRT ARETT AREFT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

Revenue KA 245,833 176,094 295,776 379,555 297,907
Gross profit 7 47,119 12,675 70,553 116,906 101,188
Gross profit margin EVIES 19.2% 7.2% 23.9% 30.8% 34.0%
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAER (E518) 3,316 (30,333) 8,937 63,255 51,917
Profit/(loss) attributable NEVER KRR EGET

to equity shareholders / (58)

of the Company 3,746 (26,010) 7,329 50,874 44,822
Listing expenses isiii b2 - - - - 4,005

®12831H

As at December 31
20235 20224 20214 20204 20194
ARBTRT ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

Total assets B ELEEE 528,933 518,034 572,316 625,908 522,552
Total liabilities BE4E%E 283,487 276,468 305,644 355,836 291,833
Total equity HE TS MR EE 245,446 241,566 266,672 270,072 230,719
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors of China
Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

In 2023, with the improvement of the economic situation
and the gradual restoration of norm of living, heavy truck
sale volume increased 36% as compared with 2022,
with the annual sales volume of 911,000 units. This also
reinforced the Company’s strategic direction of adherence
to the “dual-wheel” drive for passenger vehicles and
commercial vehicles, and the Company will continue to
consolidate the leading position in Northwest China’s
largest heavy truck market while actively developing the
passenger vehicle market. The Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB245.8 million in 2023, representing an
increase of 39.6% year on year (2022: RMB176.1 million);
and the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was approximately RMB3.7 million (2022: loss
of approximately RMB26.0 million). The Company did
not recommend to declare a final dividend for 2023 to
shareholders.

In 2023, the Group has been managed by factory-based
operations, conducted relatively independent research and
management and manufacturing according to the product
process, maintained the specialization and sophistication
of the product line, promoted the independent contracting
and profit sharing as the main direction, encouraged the
enthusiasm and independent initiative of the management
and employees, and completed the Company’s system
informatization and comprehensive reform under the
main line of “market, products, TES, organization, and
mechanism”, so as to help the Group create a win-win
situation.

Chairman’s Statement

FTRHBRES

NEHMEIURR :

EANERXRFEXBEAERNBEBRA T
(TxrE) BE5g (TEEg ) BEE2EX QT
REWBRE (TXEHE]) 8 1E2023F124
S1HLEEE (KRFEE)) 2EHK-

2023F  BER BBV ETENEZNR
E’J%*/F'W%%ifﬁ%fﬁﬁgmwgﬁm @ b
2022F EFH36% EHEMNMEE T 28 #
R EREEEAEEREIHIBE S E
Bi#EZEPEALIRAEE FEDHHS
M UNBER  BiGMABRBEMIE - zls%
BR2023FEBREBHRANARKE245.888
70 B EE20224% EF39.6% (20224F : AR
176 1EEB ) ; BBERN ARG HAIRBE
EEFNARBI7TEE T (20225 : 518
WARMB26.0BET) ~ARATEZOR
BEEIR2023F KK S -

2023F  AEBUIHBLEELEEE  RWESR
TEEHDHEEBINAEMNRSE ﬁﬂz%ﬁ&m
ERF UBTEARE - MBORAETE
Eﬂ%ﬁ)\éﬁélaﬁﬁﬁx'lﬁﬁQiﬁﬁéﬂ'lﬁ’
UTHZ - ER TES B #5154
ERATDNBEREEEN2EEE  BERE
LA

nj/\ﬂﬂ}lo
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Chairman’s Statement

FREHRES

In 2024, the heavy truck industry is expected to usher
in a good performance. In this year, the whole country
will continue to adhere to the general principle of
seeking progress while maintaining stability, vigorously
boost market confidence, implement the strategy of
expanding domestic demand, actively promote the overall
improvement of economic performance, and achieve
effective improvement in quality and reasonable growth
in quantity. In this year, the passenger vehicle market will
continue to be supported by relevant policies and will
have huge potential. In particular, the self-owned brand
passenger vehicles are expected to achieve growth in both
market share and sales.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our honorable
shareholders, global partners and all employees of the
Tianrui Group. Under the accelerated reshuffle of the
industry, the Group will respond to it with the development
concept of “focusing on the principal business, keeping
innovation, and achieving steady progress (BEfgEF ¥
SFIERIFT 1718 3E) 7, and take priority in promoting
sustainable development and constantly improving
business management. By implementing the TES (X I &2 i
BEIRFEAR) and further enhancing its competitiveness, the
Group is committed to promoting its long-term and sound
development, so as to create greater value to reward the
support of the shareholders.

Hou Jianli
Chairman

Xi’an, China, 28 March 2024

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXIH/SEANMFERAE

2024 FHEBERFENTIRIEM  EFR1T
ERERRE-AF2ERERBFRBHK
EBER KARKETEHEL BERBERR
FER O RBEFCEETERFE B
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Looking back on 2023, with the improvement of the
economic situation and the gradual restoration of norm
of living, the sales volume of heavy trucks increased 36%
year-on-year in 2023. the demand for heavy trucks is
expected to increase in 2024, the heavy truck industry will
stabilize and rebound.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We have developed into the largest heavy trucks’ interior
decorative components and parts manufacturer in North
West China with a market-leading position. Our products
primarily comprise a wide array of automotive interior
decorative components and parts and to a lesser extent
exterior decorative components and parts, which are
designed to be installed on heavy trucks or passenger
vehicles. We offer design and development solutions
tailored to meet our customers’ specific requirements of
automotive interior decorative products including functional
specifications and appearance.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of automotive interior and exterior decorative
components and parts. Set forth below is the breakdown
of our revenue by product category for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022:

BB E D h

TEHE

ElEE2023F  BEK AN EFEMNEE
MERNELSME > 2023F 8~ 4 = F L8
R36%°FRET2024F HEE FEHHF KK
BN - EFTERERRE-

275 [o] B8
HPCEERASPTEHAELRANER FE
NEFZEHRER > EEHHAELMAAL - K
MNERTECHRERFEARAERE
ANERAERNGH TG HREEINGZ
B -HAERELFHAEAMERNIIE
MBRIINBERBEERREHES RN
MERRDR - FAEEBZTERXFAERIINE
T E M RERIHE -

AREBTEREAERNINEHESHH RS
FSHE o FREHEH E2023F K2022F 12
BS1HIEEERERENE D Z2HMOI W
A

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31HLEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETFT % ARBFTT %
Heavy trucks’ decorative ENFHEHTHG
components and parts 224,354 91.26 151,582 86.08
Passenger vehicles’ decorative &R B R T4
components and parts 21,479 8.74 24,512 13.92
Total 4 Et 245,833 100.0 176,094 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEAmASH

Revenue from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts increased from approximately
RMB151.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB224.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing an increase of approximately
48.01%.

The increase was mainly due to recovery of heavy truck
market in 2023, with sale of heavy trucks increasing year-
on-year. The national sales volume of heavy trucks was
911,000, with a year-on-year increase of 36%.

Revenue from sales of passenger vehicles’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of passenger vehicles’
decorative components and parts decreased from
approximately RMB24.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB21.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, representing a decrease of
approximately 12.4%. The decrease was mainly due to our
reduction in the supply of low-margin products to multi-tier
suppliers, while expanding products supply to automobile
plants as the first-tier supplier.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Qur revenue increased from approximately RMB176.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB245.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing an increase of approximately
39.6%. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
sales of decorative components and parts for heavy trucks.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXIH/SEANMFERAE

BERFERMTHEHEEEZNRA

HEER FEEHEBHELENRAH
HE2022F12B31HLEEEMNYHY AR
151. 68 BT EEH E2023F12831H 1k
FEMNNARE224 488 BIENA
48.01% o

ZEMFEEBHMN2023FE R HHOE:
MGHESBLEEFIENM 2023F2HE
FIHE11EH B EFEEIBLIZ6Y

BRBEEMTHMGHEEEZNRA

HEXRBEEMETBHEEENBRABREE
2022F12B31HIEFEMNHNARK24.55
BT RLEHE2023FE12831HILEEEMN
WARM21.6B8L BIBHNA12.4% %
BRLOETERHREMARLD THRENESZD
SREEINEE BREXTIES—RMHE
FERmmEEmE LA ERMNMEE-

Bt %% [0] B8

N
WAREBE2022F128A31HILEEENH A
RE176 1EE T E&H E2023F12831
HEEEMNHNARK245.858 0 BIEDN
A39.6% ZEMETERANRKMNERE £
BEREMEHEHEEM-



Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased from approximately RMB12.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB47.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing an increase of approximately
271.7%. Our overall gross profit margin increased from
approximately 7.2% for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately 19.2% for the year ended 31 December
2023. Such increase in gross profit margin of products
was primarily due to the higher sales income and the lower
increase in fixed costs including labor.

Other income

Qur other income increased from approximately
RMB3.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB4.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing an increase of approximately
36.7%, which was mainly due to the increase in net
profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
government grants in 2023 compared with that of 2022.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased from
approximately RMB3.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB2.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, representing a decrease of
approximately 26.8%. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in labor costs.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased from approximately
RMB33.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB35.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing an increase of 7.4%. Such
increase was mainly due to the entertainment expenses
and tax for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BB E D h

ENREFE

EMREEE2022F 12831 HIEEEMNH A
RE12.7TEETIEE#H E2023F12831H
FTEENYARBI47T 15 BT BEBNA
271.7% c EF XX EH E2022F12831HH
N7 2% MEHE2023F12831B ML
19.2% c EEHRMNAFHEWAG M AT
EETERARE ERERENEIEM-

Hag A

HMRARE E2022F12831HLEEEDN
MARKIOOBEETEEZE IE2023F12A
SIHEFENNARKI 1 BET EEYN
BB6.7T% ZEHMFERHN2023FEE
EEMBTEWGER2022F ]

HEMX

HERXEHE2022F12831HILEEEN
WARKEISEBTHLVEEHE2023F12
B31HIEFENHOARK2 8H & KRIg

WH26.8% AL EERHNREEMAR
o
THRAX

THBAXREE2022F12831HLEEEN
MARKIZIEBTIEEEH E2023F124
S1IHIEFENHOARKIS.6B8E T BIE
WNAEBT 4% ZEWEBEBETERNREE2023FH
EBBEEMRSL MR-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEAmASH

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased from approximately
RMB9.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB9.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing a increase of approximately
1.7%. Such increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in interest on bank and other loans.

Income tax

Our income tax credit amounted to approximately RMBO.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
income tax credit accounted to approximately RMB4.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The income
tax credit was mainly due to recognition of the deferred tax
assets.

Profit/(loss) for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit amounted to
approximately RMB3.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, as compared to a loss amounted to
approximately RMB26.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL

STRUCTURE

The operating capital of the Group was mainly from cash
from operating activities and bank and other loans. As at
31 December 2023 and 2022, cash and cash equivalents
of the Group were approximately RMB67.5 million and
RMB78.5 million respectively.

The Group monitors the cash flows and cash balances
on a regular basis and seek to maintain an optimal level
of liquidity that can meet the working capital needs while
supporting a healthy level of business and its various
growth strategies.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXIH/SEANMFERAE

B1 7% A s
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank and Other Loans

Bank and other loans decreased from approximately
RMB130.5 million as at 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB102.1 million as at 31 December 20283.
Among them, the credit loans and the loans guaranteed by
a third party, the ultimate controlling party of the Company,
or a subsidiary of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB47.5 million (2022: RMB68.0 million), and the bank
and other loans in the amounts of approximately RMB54.6
million (2022: RMB62.5 million) were secured by trade and
bills receivables, property, plant and equipment and cash at
bank of the Group.

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 were
at 54.0% and 53.6% respectively.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity as
at the end of the respective year. Total debts include all
interest-bearing bank and other loans.

Inventories

Our inventories increased from approximately RMB53.2
million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB60.6
million as at 31 December 2023, representing a increase
of approximately 13.9%. The increase was mainly due to
the increase in the volume of inventories as a result of the
increase in the sales order in 2023.

Prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment

Our prepayment for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment increased from approximately RMB8.8 million
as at 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB9.4 million
as at 31 December 2023, representing an increase of
approximately 7.4%. The increase is mainly due to the
investment in new projects of the Group in 2023.

BB E D h

RITREMER

BT REMERN2022F12H31HHH A
E¥130.558 THE2023F 128318 K
HWARB1021BET - ER  EHA - F=H
ER REERAREBFARERENRS
WANR®47T 588 T (20224F 1 AR¥68.0
B8 REERENRT EMERAEY
ARBE46EE T (20228 1 ARM62.58
Bx) HAEENEZERZREBEREKRE
B WME-ROER " BERKXEILT-

BEARBELEER
R2o022F K2023F12H31H  BXxAGELL
KNP A54.0%%53.6%°

EABBLEEXBERZERNEBEER
NRZERE RHREEEMANBRITR
H&m™e

=78

FEH2022F12B31HMY AR KS53.28
BT E2023F12H31HMA AR K60.6
BEET EEAA13.9% ZEMETEEMH
R2023F:TEEM FIHENEFEEREZ
e

BEVME -BERRBEZEMRE

BEYE BERKEBEZBANHER2022
F12A31HHNOWARKS. 8B TR
20283F12RA31HMWMNAR®I. 48 E T
BWIBAA7 4% ZENETESHENEERE
2023FMIBEKL AT o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEAmASH

Charged Assets BIREEE

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by AEBMNETRTAEMETRHEAERW

the following assets of the Group: UTEEMEER:
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIT AREEFIT
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERZB 109,855 108,174
Trade and bills receivables B 5 FE W IE K FE N 22 1 298 21,590
Cash at bank IRITHER 5,000 =
115,153 129,764

Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2023, the capital expenditures were
approximately RMB21.4 million (2022: approximately
RMB28.7 million). The capital expenditures incurred for
the year ended 31 December 2023 primarily related to the
purchase of new machineries and equipments.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the capital commitments in
respect of property, plant and equipment contracted were
approximately RMB22.4 million (2022: approximately
RMB10.0 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXIH/SEANMFERAE

BEAMX

R2023F12H31H BEXABIZNABARE
21. 4B B T(2022F : N ARE28.78 8
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B AR IE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FLUCTUATION OF RMB EXCHANGE RATE AND

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The majority of the Group’s business and all bank
borrowings are denominated and accounted for in RMB.
Therefore, the Group does not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation.

The Board does not anticipate that the fluctuation of RMB
exchange rate and other foreign exchange fluctuations
will have any material impact on the business operations
or financial results of the Group. The Group will closely
monitor the foreign exchange market and take appropriate
and effective measures from time to time to reduce any
negative impact from exchange-rate risk to the furthest
extent.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no significant investments held or material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 361
full time employees (2022: 389). For the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group incurred total staff costs of
approximately RMB39.8 million (2022: approximately
RMB41.8 million), representing a decrease of approximately
4.8% as compared with those in 2022. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in the number of employees.

The remuneration policy of our Group to reward its
employees and executives is based on their performance,
qualifications and competence displayed and is
comparable to the market. A remuneration package is
typically comprised of salaries, discretionary bonuses,
retirement scheme contributions, and other benefits.

BB E D h

AR BE R IK B K E R AR

AEENBRABOEFTRE2MHRITERT
UARBERZ RAR SEERIIERE R

B o
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KER KNS EHAEBRANEFTHAEFET K
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I ARG ER MBI > E B e 0H
REREXRRBRERNNEERE-

FENEAKRE - EXRUNBETERLEE
FIF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEAmASH

In order to retain and enrich the knowledge, skill level
and quality of our employees, the Group places a strong
emphasis on training our employees. In addition, the Group
offers a competitive remuneration package to retain elite
employees, and reviews the package annually according
to industry benchmark and financial results, as well as the
individual performance of employees.

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no major events
subsequent to 31 December 2023 which would materially
affect the Group’s operating and financial performance as
of the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date
of this report, neither our Company, nor its subsidiaries
have purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2024, China’s economy will continue to
recover steadily, and the long-term positive fundamentals
of the macro-economy will not change. The annual
demand of heavy truck market will show a trend of lower
demand at the beginning and higher demand after, and
the competition in respect of stocks will become the new
norm. The passenger car market has a huge potential with
superimposed policy support to help increase the market
share and sales volume of self-owned brand passenger
cars. We will firmly promote the dual track operation of
passenger cars and commercial vehicles, and maintain the
stock market and expand the external market.

We will continue to improve and continue to promote the
“TES” (Tianrui Excellence Management System) to make
the Tianrui Basic Law a standardized model of group
management. Through benchmarking, we will complete the
company’s system informatization construction, complete
the incentive mechanism for key employees, and achieve a
win-win situation for Tianrui people.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli ##)), aged 60, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of our
Board, the chief executive officer and the general manager
of our Group. Mr. Hou is mainly responsible for the overall
management, operations, strategic development and
business planning of our Group. Mr. Hou joined our Group
in May 2009 and has been acting as executive director and
general manager of Xi’an Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co.,
Ltd. (AL XIHAEAMEBRAE) (“Xi'an Tianrui”) since
then. He was appointed as our Director on 27 April 2017
and was redesignated as our Executive Director on 9 May
2018. Mr. Hou is also the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Hou also possesses over 30 years of experience in
the manufacturing industry. From August 1985 to January
2000, Mr. Hou successively served as technician, workshop
deputy director, branch manager, chief engineer and head
of the composite packaging materials research institute of
PR PR A s MR (Shaanxi Province Pioneer Machinery
Factory*). Since January 2000, Mr. Hou served as legal
representative and director of B M X F BEH B ER AR
(Baoji Tianxiang Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd.*) .

Mr. Hou graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Technology (Bt
7 T2 5%) (how known as Shaanxi University of Technology
(BRPEIE T KE)) in the PRC with a bachelor's degree in
industrial electronic automation in July 1985.

Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen Bierui, who is our
Controlling Shareholder.

Mr. Xu Yunhua (5¥&E%), aged 46, is our Executive
Director and the sales director of Xi’an Tianrui, which is
a subsidiary of our Group. He is mainly responsible for
sales management of Xi’an Tianrui. He joined our Group
in September 2010 and had successively worked as sales
supervisor and the head of the sales department of Xi’an
Tianrui. He was then promoted to the sales director of Xi’an
Tianrui in February 2019. Mr. Xu is also the director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Xu was appointed as our
Executive Director and on 7 November 2022, and resigned
on 19 April 2024 a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREERREE

Mr. Xu has over 19 years of experience in the sales
industry. From August 2003 to September 2010, he
worked successively as a salesman, the assistant section
head of the sales department and the head of the plastic
production factory of Baoji Wanhe Enterprise Co., Ltd (&
HHBESEXEMRAT). He was mainly responsible for
market development and overall management of the plastic
production factory.

Mr. Xu obtained his technical secondary school diploma in
industrial electronic automation from Baoji Industrial School
(BE™HLEERK) (now known as Baiji Vocational and
Technical College (E8 % B 2 T2 F%) ) in July 1997.

Mr. Xu is the nephew-in-law of Ms. Chen Bierui, who is
our Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Xu is also the nephew-in-
law of Mr. Hou Jianli, who is our Controlling Shareholder,
Executive Director, the chairman of our Board, the chief
executive officer and the general manager of the Group.

Ms. Zhang Jingrong, aged 49, is the general manager of
a subsidiary of Xi’an Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD.
(“Xi’an Tianrui”), a subsidiary of the Group, since December
2023. She is mainly responsible for the comprehensive
management of this subsidiary company. She joined the
Group in August 2007, and has successively served as the
finance minister, finance director and purchasing director
of Xi’an Tianrui until December 2023. Ms. Zhang was
appointed as an executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company on 19 April 2024.

Ms. Zhang has over 28 years of financial management
experience. From July 1995 to July 2007, she successively
worked as an auditor in the Audit Office of Shaanxi Coking
Plant, as a cashier and general ledger accountant in Baoji
Radio No. 3 Plant, and as an accountant and financial
director in Baoji Teaching Center of Network Education
College of Southwest Jiaotong University.

Ms. Zhang graduated from Xi’an University of Architecture
and Technology in July 1996 with a Junior College Degree
in Industrial Accounting, and obtained an Intermediate
Accountant Certificate in 2004, and in January 2009 with a
bachelor degree in Computer Science and Technology from
Xi’an University of Electronic Science and Technology.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Honggiang (%4158) , aged 54, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in legal practice in the PRC. He joined Shaanxi
Yongjia Law Firm (BR P X EREMEFFT) in October 2001 as
a lawyer and the deputy director and is currently a partner
of the law firm.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in law from Northwest College
of Political Science and Law (7816 BUE 2 B%) (now known as
Northwest University of Political Science and Law (7815
A KE)) through self-study higher education examination
(B5EHEE2%5)in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Zhu
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Evening College
of Xi'an Technological Institute (7% T2 E[%) (now known
as Xi'an Technological University (FEZ T2 AK2)) in the
PRC in July 2005. Mr. Zhu was admitted as a PRC lawyer
by the Shaanxi Provincial Department of Justice (FXFE & B
75 BE) in October 2001.

Mr. Zhou Genshu (AiR#l), aged 59, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company and a member of each of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhou has over 27 years of experience in the education
industry. Since November 1995, he worked in the School
of Materials Science and Engineering of Xi’an Jiaotong
University (A& 2 8 A2 MR R 8 B T 72 20%) successively
as associate professor, professor and doctorial supervisor
and is mainly responsible for lecturing and material science
research. During such period, he has hosted several
important scientific research projects and published
academic papers on reputable scientific journals.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREERREE

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in foundry
engineering and a master’s degree in foundry engineering
from Tsinghua University GBEAZ)in July 1986 and
August 1989 respectively. He obtained a doctoral
degree in foundry engineering from Northwestern Poly-
technical University (FA3t T K2)in October 1993. He
obtained a post-doctoral certificate in material science
and engineering from National Post-Doctoral Regulatory
Committee (ZEIE+HREIEEZEF)in December 1995.
He serves as the committee member and secretary of the
Typical Component Heat Treatment Technology Committee
of the Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society (& Bl 52
B2 HRAREFMZEZEF)since October 20086,
the standing committee member of the Heat Treatment
Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society (A Bl 1
TR E2 T EIEN ) since July 2015 and the chairman
of the Material and Heat Treatment Branch of the Shaanxi
Provincial Mechanical Engineering Society (PR 78 2 #4 i T
REFME RBAEIED ) since March 2016. He has been
granted several awards including the third prize of Shaanxi
Province Science and Technology Award, the second prize
of Xi’an City Science and Technology Award, the second
prize of Chinese University Science and Technology Award
and the Technology Innovation Award of Heat Treatment
Society.

Mr. Chen Geng (BfEk), aged 50, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 15 September
2020 and is also a member of each of the audit committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chen has
over 17 years of experience in the education industry. He
has been working in the School of Economics and Business
Administration of Chongging University (2 B A2 4875 8 T
5 B B 2 %) successively as associate professor, professor
and master tutor since July 2004 and is mainly responsible
for lecturing and financial, accounting and financial market
research. During such period, he has hosted several
scientific research projects and published academic papers
on reputable journals.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chen is currently an independent director of Chongging
Lummy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (stock code: 300006), a
company being listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an
independent director of Landai Technology Group Corp.,
Ltd. (stock code: 002765), a company being listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an independent director
of Fuan Pharmaceutical (Group) Co.,Ltd. (stock code:
300194), a company being listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and an independent director of Jiutai Mutual
Fund Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor s degree in economics from
Renmin University of China (FE AR AZ)and a master’s
degree in economics from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics (FARM M & AE)in July 1996 and
June 2001 respectively. He obtained a doctor’s degree in
economics from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics (FARFEF £ K2)in June 2004 and obtained a
post-doctoral certificate in business administration from
National Post-Doctoral Regulatory Committee (£ 18
T®EIEEHEE)in March 2009. Mr. Chen obtained the
qualification as Certified Public Valuer and Certified Public
Accountant both granted by the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in September 2001 and July
2004 respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Jianli ##)), aged 60, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of
our Board, the chief executive officer and the general
manager of our Group. For further details, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section
above.

Ms. Zhang Wei (3Rf#%), aged 36, is the chief financial
officer of our Group, the secretary of our Board and one of
the joint company secretaries of our Company. Ms. Zhang
is primarily responsible for the accounting and financial
management of our Group and assisting our Board on
corporate governance matters. Ms. Zhang joined our Group
in September 2020 and resigned on 28 November 20283.
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EFREREERREE

Ms. Zhang has over 12 years of experience in accounting.
From April 2012 to June 2018, Ms. Zhang served as a
project manager at Xigema Certified Public Accountants
(Special Ordinary Partnership) (% #3352 5t 1 = #5 Fr
(3% E@EEE)). During such period, she was mainly
responsible for the annual audit and internal control audit
work of large-scale state-owned enterprises and listed
companies. From November 2019 to August 2020, Ms.

Zhang served as the chief financial officer of Xi’an Huaren

Health Investment Management Co., Ltd (FAZZE#
BREEEAERAT), which principally engages in the
business of equity investment. During such period, she
was mainly responsible for the financial management of the
company.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in management
from Xi'an College of Posts and Telecommunications (7§
Z B8 EEP7) (now known as Xi’an University of Posts and
Telecommunications (FZEHEAZ)) in July 2010. Ms.
Zhang has been qualified as a Chinese Certified Public
Accountant since August 2014.

Mr. Xu Yunhua (Ff&%), aged 46, is our Executive
Director and the sales director of Xi’an Tianrui. For further
details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors” in this section above. Mr. Xu joined the Group on
September 2010, and resigned on 19 April 2024.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhang Wei (5Rf%), aged 36, was appointed as one
of the joint company secretaries of our Company on
28 December 2020. resigned on 28 November 2023.
She is also the chief financial officer of our Group and
the secretary of our Board. For her qualifications and
experience, please refer to the paragraph headed “SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” in this section.
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Mr. Ip Pui Sum (EH#), aged 64, was appointed as
one of the joint company secretaries of our Company on
9 May 2018. Mr. Ip has been the partner of Sum, Arthur &
Co., Certified Public Accountants since 1999 whose scope
of services include the provision of financial statements
audit, accounting and company secretary services. Mr. Ip
has been appointed as the company secretary of various
companies listed on the Main Board and GEM of the Stock
Exchange including Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Group
(stock code: 322), Luoyang Glass Company Limited (stock
code: 1108), Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1858), Golden Solar New Energy
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 1121) and
Asiaray Media Group Limited (stock code: 1993) since
January 1996, August 2008, March 2015, April 2017 and
June 2017 respectively and one of the joint company
secretaries of ZACD Group Ltd. (stock code: 8313) since
July 2017.

Mr. Ip obtained a higher diploma in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Henley Management College and Brunel University in May
1997. Mr. Ip is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (United Kingdom) and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the (Chartered Governance) Institute and The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries).
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Corporate Governance Report

EEXELRKRS

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE CODE

Our Company has committed to delivering and maintaining
a higher standard of corporate governance to meet
business needs and shareholders’ expectation. Our
Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part 2
of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code”) as the basis of our Company’s
corporate governance practices. The Company has
complied with the Corporate Governance Code for the year
ended 31 December 2023, save for the following deviation:

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the role of chairman and the chief
executive should be segregate and should not be
performed by the same individual. However, Mr. Hou Jianli
currently performs the roles as the chairman and general
manager. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
chairman and general manager in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within our Group
and enables more efficient overall strategic planning for our
Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority will not be impaired by the present arrangement
and this structure will enable our Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. After taking
into account the overall circumstances of our Group, the
Board will continue to review and consider whether the
duties of the chairman and general manager should be
separated.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The
Board has established three Board committees, being the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
(each a “Board Committee” and collectively the “Board
Committees”), to oversee different areas of the Company’s
affairs. As of the date of this annual report, the composition
of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Yunhua (resigned on 19 April 2024)

Ms. Zhang Jingrong (Appointed on 19 April 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Chen Geng

Their biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 15 to 21 in the annual report. A list of the
Directors identifying their role and function and whether
they are independent non-executive Directors are available
on the Company’s website.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company commencing for a term of three
years unless terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company for a
term of three years unless terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.
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Mr. Xu Yunhua, the Executive Director of the Company, is
the nephew-in-law of Mr. Hou Jianli, the Executive Director
and the chairman and general manager of the Group. Other
than that, there is no financial, business or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The functions and duties of the Board include but are not
limited to: convening Shareholders’ general meetings and
reporting the Board’s work at the Shareholders’ general
meetings; implementing the resolutions passed at the
Shareholders’ general meetings; determining our business
plans and investment plans; preparing annual budget
proposals and final accounts proposals; preparing plans
for profit distribution and recovery of losses; preparing
plans for the increase or decrease in registered capital; and
exercising other power, functions and duties as conferred
by the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). Each of our Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Company, and the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

The daily management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with
reasonable care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
Director receives an induction to ensure that he/she has
a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his duties
and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules and
requirements.
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The Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) or act and corporate
governance practices organised by professional bodies so
that they can continuously update and further improve their
relevant knowledge and skills. In addition, briefings and
updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements are
provided to each of the Directors during Board meetings
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. During the year, the
Directors participated in the following trainings:
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Type of training

Directors EE 1% 48 Bl
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Hou Jianli e¥=l A,B
Mr. Xu Yunhua HrEE AB
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFEHTESE

Mr. Zhu Honggiang E AR A,B
Mr. Zhou Genshu B R AB
Mr. Chen Geng R Bk A.B

A: Reading materials given by the Company relating to the
Company’s businesses and the regular updates on the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements relevant to
the director’s duties and responsibilities

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to
economy, environment and social issues or director’s duties
and responsibilities
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INDEPENDENCE OF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the Independent Non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company to
protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three Independent
Non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
and Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has
its defined and written terms of reference approved by
the Board covering its duties, powers and functions. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are
respectively available on the Company’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources

to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Audit Committee on 18
December 2018 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph D.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among others,
mainly to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of external auditors; review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of
financial reporting; and oversee financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control procedures of our
Company.

Our Audit Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Zhou Genshu, Mr. Chen Geng and Mr. Zhu Honggiang
(each an independent non-executive Director). Mr. Zhou
Genshu is the chairman of our Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee held one meetings.
The Audit Committee has reviewed, among other things,
the financial statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 and the year ended 31 December
2023, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, report prepared by the external
auditors covering major findings in the course of the
audit, the risk management and internal control systems
and the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function and the accounting and financial reporting
matters, and selection and appointment of the external
auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph E of the Corporate Governance Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among
others, to make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group; review
performance based remuneration; and ensure none of our
Directors determine their own remuneration.
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During the year, our Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, namely, Mr. Zhu Honggiang (an
independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhou Genshu (an
independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Xu Yunhua (an
executive Director). Mr. Zhu Honggiang is the chairman of
our Remuneration Committee.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meetings. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors
and senior management of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. The
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is as follows:

Remuneration band (HK$)
#ENAER (CBo)

ERCRMNFNZE SR =M EEMN
BiRilgEE (BIUFRTES) -BREL
EFBUFATES) RFEELE (RTE
B) o RUABRAEERRMFNEZEG TR -

FAR FNZEGEBERT - RGZ -FMHZ
ECEERERESFARTAAAREERE
BY BN SR R 2R AR o
EEREREEEFHMN

AR EMNEEFAEREST A REERE

FMHBRITI L EXARESBHENER M
HE2023F 12831 HLELEE EEEMWH
B BEE N AERMEHRERM S o

SR EEBNEERENAETFR EEhS
MEEERE) — -MNEE20235F12H31
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Number of individuals

AE

0—1,000,000
1,000,000—1,500,000
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on
18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph B.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are, among others, to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors.

Our Nomination Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Hou Jianli (an executive Director), Mr. Zhou
Genshu (an independent non-executive Director) and Mr.
Chen Geng (an independent non-executive Director). Mr.
Hou Jianli is the chairman of our Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one
meetings. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
policy for the nomination of Directors, the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assessed independence
of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”). The Nomination Committee will
assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such
as education background, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities. The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Nomination Policy and report to the
Board when necessary. Also, the Nomination Committee
will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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The Company has adopted a policy on diversity of Board
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity
Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. With a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board’s
composition, the Company considers diversity of the Board
from a variety of perspectives, including but not limited
to age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All appointments to the Board are made on the
basis of merit, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Our Company and the Nomination Committee regularly
review the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy:

(1) Independence: The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) so
that there is a strong element of independence in the
Board. Independent non-executive Directors have
sufficient talent and number to provide influential
opinions.

(2) Skills and experience: The Board has balanced skills
that are suitable for the Company’s business needs.
The Directors have a blend of finance, academic and
management backgrounds that taken together provide
the Company with extensive experience in various
business activities.

(3) Age: The Board has members from the 1960s and
1970s, respectively.
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In addition to the above objectives, in order to comply
with the Listing Rules, the Board Diversity Policy has the
following objectives:

(1) at least one-third of members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors; and

(2) at least one of the members of the Board shall
have obtained appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or relevant financial management
expertise.

The Company recognises the importance of gender
diversity and recruits employees at all levels based on
merits and regardless of gender in order to ensure there
is a pipeline of male and female potential successors to
the Board and the senior management. The Company has
appointed Ms. Zhang Jingrong as an executive Director on
19 April 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions
set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Board developed, reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, and the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each of the current Directors at
the Board and Board committee meetings and the general
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out in the table below. The Directors
did not authorize any alternate Director to attend the Board
or Board Committee meetings.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings HEBR  EERH
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
By BRZEE HFWZEE REZEE EXxg REBFXE
Mr. Hou Jianli N/A N/A 1/1 4/4 1/1
ERENLE @A B
Mr. Xu Yunhua N/A 1/1 N/A 4/4 N/A
FEELE EA E A E A
Mr. Zhu Honggiang 1/1 11 N/A 4/4 1/1
KAIRAEE T
Mr. Zhou Genshu 1/1 1/1 1/1 4/4 1/1
B iR
Mr. Chen Geng 1/1 N/A 1/1 4/4 1/1
B Bk o TNER
Ms. Zhang Jingrong N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
REAZ L FE R R TiE R R T
BOARD MEETINGS EEEERE

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held regularly
at least four times each year and shall be convened by
the chairman of the Board of Directors. If a Director is
unable to attend a Board meeting, he may appoint another
Director by a written power of attorney to attend on his
behalf. Such a power of attorney shall specify the scope
of authorization. Directors attending Board meetings on
behalf of other directors shall exercise their powers as
directors within their scope of authorization. If a Director
fails to attend a Board meeting and does not appoint an
attorney to attend, the Director is deemed to have waived
his rights to vote at that meeting. Each Director shall have
one vote. Questions arising at any meetings of the Board of
Directors shall be determined by a majority of votes. Where
the numbers of votes cast for and against a resolution
are equal, the chairman shall have the right to cast an
additional vote.
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Board’s Independence

The Company has established the following mechanisms to
ensure independent views and opinions are available to the
Board:

(i) Composition of the Board and Board Committees
° The Board endeavours to ensure the
appointment of at least three and at least one-
third of its members being independent non-
executive Directors (or such higher threshold as
may be required by the Listing Rules from time
to time).

° Apart from complying with the requirements
prescribed by the Listing Rules as to the
composition of certain Board committees,
independent non-executive Directors will be
appointed to other Board committees as far as
practicable to ensure independent views are
available.

(ii) Independence Assessment
° The Nomination Committee must strictly adhere
to the Nomination Policy and the independence
assessment criteria as set out in the Listing
Rules with regard to the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive
Directors.

o Each independent non-executive Director is
also required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change in his/her own
personal particulars that may materially affect
his/her independence.

° The Nomination Committee is authorised
to assess annually the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors by
reference to the independence criteria as set
out in the Listing Rules to ensure that they can
continually exercise independent judgement.
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EEXELRKRS

(iiij Compensation
o No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share
options or grants of shares) with performance
related elements will be granted to independent
non-executive Directors as this may lead to
bias in their decision making and affecting their
objectivity and independence.

(iv) Board Decision Making
° independent non-executive Directors (as other
Directors) are entitled to seek further information
and documentation from the management on
the matters to be discussed at Board meetings.
They can also seek assistance from the
Company Secretary of the Company and, where
necessary, independent advice from external
professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

o independent non-executive Directors (as other
Directors) shall not vote or be counted in the
quorum on any board resolution approving any
contract or arrangement in which such Director
or any of his/her close associates has a material
interest.

° The chairman of the Board shall at least annually
hold meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors to discuss major issues and any
concerns.

The Board will monitor the implementation and
effectiveness of the above mechanisms annually to ensure
the Board has a balance of skills, and that independent
views and opinions are available to the Board.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
as the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
and employees’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiries, all Directors and members of the senior
management confirmed that they have complied with the
relevant provisions of the Model Code throughout the
period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

To maintain good corporate governance practices and
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws,
the Company appointed Ms. Zhang Wei (chief financial
officer) and Mr. Ip Pui Sum (“Mr. Ip”) as the joint company
secretaries. Ms. Zhang Wei resigned on 28 November 2023
and Mr. Ip continues to perform his duties as the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Ip’s main contact person in
the Company is Ms. DongJuange. Mr. Ip confirmed having
received no less than 15 hours’ of professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is aware that it is responsible for monitoring the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
on an ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Group updates and reports the
key risk areas, including any remedial plans, if deemed
necessary or appropriate, to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The identified key risk areas and the
appropriate risk mitigation strategies were reviewed and
commented by the Board at its meeting annually.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted review
on the effectiveness of both design and implementation of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee will report
any material issues to the Board.

The Company has established its enterprise risk
management framework for the year. While the Board
has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound and
effective internal controls are maintained, management
is responsible for designing and implementing an internal
control system to manage all kinds of risks facing by the
Group.

The Group structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled
with risk management monitoring carried out by the finance
and compliance team. The Group maintains a risk register
to keep track of all major risks identified by the Group.
The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee,
and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant
risks. Each risk is assessed at least annually based on its
likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the
Group. The risk register is updated by management as
the risk owners with addition of new risks and/or removal
of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually, after the
annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review
process can ensure that the Group proactively manages
the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk owners have
access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to
those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can
take follow-up action in an efficient manner.
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Our risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness
of our risk management framework will be evaluated at
least annually, and regular management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part
of the daily business operation processes in order to align
risk management with corporate objective in an effective
manner.

The Company has an internal audit function which primarily
carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems, and reports
their results to the Board on, at least, an annual basis. The
Board is of the view that the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems are adequate and effective
during the year under review.

HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating
inside information in compliance with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), procedures including notification of regular blackout
period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant
Directors and employees, identification of project by code
name and dissemination of information to stated purpose
and on a “need-to-know” basis have been implemented
by the Group to guard against possible improper and/or
unauthorised use of inside information within the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the external
auditor.

The Group was charged RMB2.1 million and RMB50,000
by KPMG for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
non-auditing services mainly consist of scrutineer services.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company
shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”).

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

AT GENERAL MEETINGS

One or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings, may make a requisition to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and/or add resolutions to
the agenda of a meeting. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or a secretary for the purpose
of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company by mail to Room 4, 16/F, Ho King Commercial
Centre, 2-16 Fayuen Street, Mongkok Kowloon, Hong
Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy, which is subject to annual review to ensure its
implementation and effectiveness. Such policy aims to
ensure that Shareholders will have equal and timely access
to information about the Company, so as to enable them
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow
them to participate actively in the affairs of the Company.

A summary of the Company’s shareholders’ communication
policy is set out below.

The Company provides information to Shareholders through
its financial reports (including interim and annual reports),
circulars, announcements and other disclosures submitted
to the Stock Exchange for publication.

To further promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at www.trgcns.com with information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial reports, circulars, announcements and
other information.

Shareholders’ meetings are a primary forum for
communication between the Board and Shareholders.
The Company encourages Shareholders to attend and
participate in general meetings to ensure a high level
of accountability and to keep them informed of the
Company’s objectives and strategies. The Chairman of
the Board, other Board members, and the Chairmen
of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, are available to
answer any questions from Shareholders. Shareholders
are given adequate notice of the meetings, and detailed
voting procedures are included in circulars to Shareholders
accompanying the notices of meetings.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy for
the year ended 31 December 2023, including the steps
taken at the general meetings, the handling of queries
received and the multiple communication channels in place.
The Company is of the view that the policy is effective and
has been properly implemented.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Conditionally adopted by a special resolution dated 18
December 2018, the Articles of Association were adopted
with effect from the Listing Date and subsequently
amended by a special resolution on 28 June 2023. As at
the date of this report, save as disclosed above, no change
has been made to the amended Articles of Association.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this
annual report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SUMMARY

This report is the fifth annual environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) report issued by China Tianrui
Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the “Group” or “Us”). This
report covers the work in the financial year from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

PREPARATION BASIS

The Group prepared the ESG report in accordance with the
ESG Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules. The ESG report is intended to provide environmental
performance and social performance of the Group during
the Reporting Period, mainly including the environmental
and social issues related to the sustainable development
of the Group which the stakeholders’ concern, so that
key stakeholders can better understand the Group’s
sustainable development concepts, measures and related
performance, etc.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality

The ESG factors were thoughtfully selected through an
internal materiality analysis undertaken by us. The first
step entailed identifying potential material topics, with
feedback garnered from relevant stakeholders. After that,
these feedbacks were then prioritised with regards to
their environmental and social impact to the Group and its
stakeholders.

Quantitative

Statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/or
calculation methods for qualitative key performance
indicators herein and source of conversion factors are all
explained in the respective subsection of the Report.

Consistency
The statistical methodologies applied to the data disclosed
in this ESG report shall be consistent.
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SCOPE AND EXTENT OF REPORT
Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and data
in this report basically cover the Group and its subsidiaries.

DATA SOURCE AND RELIABILITY ASSURANCE

The data and cases of this report are mainly derived from
the statistics report and related documents of the Group.
There is no false record or misleading statement in this
report and we shall be liable for the authenticity, accuracy
and completeness of the report.

PARTICIPATION AND CONTACT OF STAKEHOLDERS
The Group expects to respond to concerns of different
stakeholders on our performance of environmental
and social responsibilities through the ESG report, and
incorporate the opinions of various stakeholders into the
management of corporate sustainability. If the stakeholders
have any comments on the contents of the Group’s ESG
report, please feel free to send a letter to the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong to contact the company
secretary of the Company.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL
As confirmed by the management, this report was
approved by the board of directors on 28 March 2024.
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3.1
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ESG CONCEPT OF THE GROUP

The Group formulated the concept o f ESG
development by building the “2+2” two-wheel
driven strategy of “commercial vehicles + passenger
vehicles supply chain”, based on the Group’s core
values of “Integrity, Concentration, Innovation and
Win-win”. Under the guidance of the ESG concept
implemented by the Group through applying the six
modules of the Tianrui Excellent Management System
Project (“TES”), tasks are well done in such aspects
as the “top priority to research and development”,
“quality-oriented”, “supremacy of environment
protection”, “quality services”, “sharing development
with employees”, “giving back to society” and
“performance of social responsibilities”.

To better promote the normalized management of
ESG, implement the ESG strategies and enhance
the ESG related risk control, the Group adopts
the threelevel governance structure: the board of
directors, the general manager and ESG working
group. The Board is responsible for implementing the
ESG management in a top-down way, the general
manager for directly managing and supervising, and
ESG working group for specific execution of the
same.

INTEGRITY: HONESTY AND TRUSTWORTHINESS,

QUALITY-ORIENTED

Integrity: Honesty and Trustworthiness

The Group strictly abides by relevant national laws
and regulations, advocates a corporate culture of
integrity, and attaches importance to its own integrity
establishment. We promote the stable development
of an enterprise featured by ecologically sustainable
growth and strongly object to monopoly, illegal
competition, destroying of market environment,
violation of competition rules and other unfair
competition methods. During the Reporting Period,
we were not involved in any unfair competition or
corruption related lawsuits.
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3.1.1KES

3.1.1 Anti-corruption

We have developed the Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistle-blowing Policy that explicitly requires all of our
employees and other external interested persons to
abide by the anti-corruption laws and regulations of
each jurisdiction, and encourages report the potential
illegal acts of employees, customers, suppliers and
other interested parties. As for the whistle-blowing
process, we have set up a whistle-blowing system
and channels to protect the whistle-blowers from
unfair dismissals, persecution and unnecessary
disciplinary actions.

3.1.2 Training on integrity

The anti-corruption strategy of the Group is based
on prevention, communication and training, regularly
advocating anti-corruption policies and regulations to
all the employees and fostering a sense of integrity.
Meanwhile, we conduct irregular training and
knowledge competition for all the employees, regulate
the behavior of employees, maintain an atmosphere of
integrity and dedication, and prevent the occurrence
of intentional fabrication and disclosure of trade
secrets, corruption, misappropriation, embezzlement
and other acts that damage the interests of the
Group. During the Reporting Period, we were not
involved in any corruption related lawsuits.
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3.2

Integrity: Quality-oriented

3.2.1 Quality concept

The Group has always been practically strengthening
corporate quality management, formulating and
following the quality policy of “Quality First, Customer
First, Optimizing Management, and Sustainable
Development”. According to the deployment of the
Group, its management is divided into six modules:
leaderships, customer relationships, projects R&D,
production and operation, supplier partnerships and
employee incentives. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has established a total of 300 TES documents,
including 1 first-level document, 78 second-level
documents and 221 third-level documents, all of
which are classified by level; and 96 leaderships
documents, 12 customer relations documents,
49 projects R&D documents, 88 production and
operation documents, 16 supplier partnerships
documents and 39 employee incentives documents,
all of which are classified by modules. Based on the
basic principle of customer-oriented, we vigorously
promote the total quality management, as well as
establish 4M change management mechanism,
hierarchical audit mechanism, process discipline
inspection and rapid response mechanism of APU.

We strictly abide by laws and regulations such as
the Product Quality Law, the Standardization Law,
the Metrology Law, the Law on the Protection of
Rights and Interests of Consumers. We carry out
business operations in accordance with laws, abide
by contracts, ensure quality and firmly object to the
production and sale of sub-quality products.
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322Kk HEEZH

3.2.2 Control of incoming material quality

During the Reporting Period, we attach importance to
the performance evaluation management of suppliers,
and conduct a comprehensive evaluation from four
dimensions including supply ability, technical skKills,
quality capability and service capability respectively,
and had identified three suppliers in the black list, 12
suppliers in the yellow list, 17 suppliers in the green
list and 768 suppliers in the red list. The suppliers
in black list will be announced and the suppliers
in yellow list will be warned. The three suppliers in
the black and yellow lists continuously had been
eliminated, thus realizing the adjustment of the quota
for our suppliers. Under this management mechanism,
the willingness of supplier to improve themselves has
become stronger.

Under the guidance of the TES of the Group,
we strictly control the access and assignation of
suppliers, and conduct comprehensive evaluation
by referring to the on-site check results, historical
quality performance, quality system, main customers
and products of suppliers. Meanwhile, we benchmark
the industry supply chain system, and gradually
include the excellent suppliers in the industry into
the supply chain system of the Group. We organize
the suppliers of key materials and components and
parts to carry out technical communication with the
Group for six times, introducing professionals and
advanced technologies. We make comparison in
accordance with the method of “Three Unifications”
(unified standards, unified methods, and unified tools),
with 108 standards unified, and go to the factories as
“households in hardship” for providing on-site support
and guidance simultaneously, so as to improve quality
assurance capability of the suppliers and reduce the
non-performing ratio of incoming goods. During the
Reporting Period, the qualified ratio for the incoming
batches of materials of the Group reached 95.59%.

BREMAR RMEFRHEHENTEE
B RHBEEED KMEN-EE
FED N BRF BE ) B M B E 1T & T 5T
i BB REIR - EFE12R & F17
RALIE768R - HEBHEFHENK
TRE - HEEHERETRE HE
BERE EENSXMHER BRMRE
BIMERAE FLLEEKG T HES
MEREEERR-

EAEETESERIEET  HMAERRKRE
ZEHEBSHNEA EH S5 HERE
BEZER ELEERE HEBSHE
ERRF HEBRFIFEETRAAEREERS
HETHEATE FARFETEETHE
BREAHEZ - BERNEFHEBSZTIH
AREBHEHERE R HMABETHA
R E T I E R B A B Rl B 126
RoRBEI=ZH—) HKE—EE-HFK—FH
FN#H—T RN AR ETHLE #—
ZHE108H - FIRFE THREES ) MR ETT
B KFEMNEE RAHESEERE
BEN BREIEFARE  REHA &K
EERBMREEEIZESTIS.59% o
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3.2.3In-process quality control

Combined with the benchmark enterprise operation
and management system, the Group conducts overall
planning, step by step development, item by item
implementation of 7QB for production quality based
on production and operation of the Company. 7QB
includes seven basic quality principles: qualified first
piece, error proof verification, self-inspection, final
inspection, red box, rework under control, quick
feedback. During the Reporting Period, 7QB has been
implemented effectively.

Under the guidance of the TES of the Group, we set
up a APU cross-departmental multifunctional team
to rapidly respond to the process quality problems,
quickly curb and promote the rapid improvement
of the process problems, as well as check and
curb the customer complaints at the shipment end,
establish the shipment inspection data according
to the factory division to form the heavy truck
shipment qualified rate, car shipment PPM, statistical
indicators in consistent with the customer, develop
and implement the factory quality agreement. We
carry out 4M change management, which includes
personnel, machinery and equipment, materials
and operation methods. The factory will identify the
change points, observe the operation on the change
points, and jointly conduct the first article assurance
with inspectors to ensure that the 4M changes are
carried out under control and the quality improvement
is remarkable. We establish a hierarchical audit
mechanism, which consists of four layers: team
leader, workshop director, factory director and general
manager. Each layer inspects item by item at the
audit frequency through using an audit table, makes
an action plan for non-conforming items, and verifies
the closure. During the Reporting Period, we signed
259 copies of standard samples, classified them
and established ledger management, compiled and
issued 687 copies of SIP instructions, and achieved
standardized inspection of process quality. We
have established a joint inspection mechanism to
conduct a comprehensive inspection and continuous
improvement of system operation, process discipline
implementation, HSE, etc. Based on the basic
principle of customer-oriented, we use scientific
methods to identify TOP process, after-sales and
customer complaints for analysis and improvement.
During the reporting period, the qualified rate of
the Group’s heavy card batches of clients reached
99.69%, a year-on-year increase of 0.1%.
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3.2.4 Quick response to quality issues 324 B EREE

In order to ensure quality and rapid response,
the Group has set up an after-sales service team
for heavy trucks and cars, formulated “Customer
Complaint Handling Management Measures”
and “Rapid Response Mechanism “to define job
responsibilities and response time (namely, after-
sales service personnel will arrive at the site within 10
minutes after customer feedback), and ensured the
implementation. Under the guidance of the Group’s
operational guidelines and on the basis of APU inter-
departmental multifunctional team, the Group sets
up an 8D informatization process, during which the
main engineers are responsible for solving quality
problems and dealing with unqualified products, and
the promoters verify the improvement results to form
a closed loop. The team worked together to solve 56
8D problems, solidified and spread horizontally from
the management mechanism and operating standards
to prevent similar problems from recurring.

3.2.5 Continuous improvement in quality

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
comprehensively promoted continuous improvement,
aiming at enhancing customer satisfaction. The Group
unifies material property standards, raw material
technical requirements and experimental standards,
as well as implements mold standardization
rectification to realize rapid mold change and improve
the production efficiency. Through the reasonable
suggestion mechanism, a good atmosphere of
participation and active improvement by all employees
is created.
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3.2.6 Quality achievements

During the Reporting Period, under the operation of
the excellent management system, the Group has
completed and passed the on-site audit by customers
of BYD, Magna Hongli, Faurecia and Shaanxi
Automobile, completed the supervision and audit of
quality management system in IATF16949 automobile
industry and the supervision and certification audit of
CQC and E-MARK, and won the “Quality Excellence
Award” for excellent suppliers of Shaanxi Heavy Duty
Automobile Co., Ltd. in 2023.
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FOCUS: SUPREMACY OF ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION AND GREEN OPERATION

We focus on environmental management and are
committed to cultivating, protecting and improving
the environment. We incorporate the concept of
green operation into the processes of production and
management, and fulfill our corporate responsibilities
through continuous innovation and improvement. We
have set up an environmental improvement team to
save resources, improve the utilization efficiency of
resources and reduce the impact on environment, so
as to promote green integration and build a better
future together.

The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Environmental Protection, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Ambient Noise Pollution, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, and other
laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, we
did not suffer any material fines penalties for violating
any environmental laws or regulations.

IRIZ - B REBHERS
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4.1 SAVE RESOURCES 4.1 EHHNER

4.1.1 Management of water resource 4.1.1 kEFEEE
The Group’s production and operating activities mainly AREEBNEEKRETHTEFRAAK
use tap water. Although there is no issue in sourcing KOoFERIRBAKRELTEEBE B85
water that is fit for purpose, to improve the efficiency TRAKEENEARE  ZMERS
of the use of water resources, we will be committed RESTHREEBNEMERETSERD
to implementing various improvement projects for KEGEER SR EHR > REBELFEK
water saving in administration and technological EWT EEBEKERLL EFA42.6%°

improvement. During the Reporting Period, the total
consumption of the Group was as follows, and the
water consumption per output value increased by
42.6% year on year.

2022 2023
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
2E BE
(588 C=2=3]
NG N
Type il e  WEHES) e  WmHES)
Total water consumption (ton)  #BFE K £(T) 10,500 59.6 20,899 85.0

Repair of water pipelines K EHEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group has 3REH N> ZXEE T BB /KEE WEKRBRE R
completed the replacement of a total of 56 pieces FFEMHEEo6H HEEEITEBIR  ERBRLZKEE
of daily consumables such as faucets and foot 32t & BFiREE/KEFE S &K o

valves, the repair of the main pipelines for once,

and the repair of the branch pipelines for twice, so

as to avoid the risk of water resource waste in a

timely manner.
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4.1.2 Management of energy 4.1.25E B EE
We will actively strengthen the management of KMBEEmNRmBERONAEE EH
consumption of electricity, fuel, natural gas and E-XAARRHEMERNEE  BHIE
other resources in all processes to strive to improve BEIHERERREHNERERARE-

employees’ awareness of energy conservation and
environmental protection and the utilization efficiency
of resources.

During the Reporting Period, the consumption of BREHARN REBEN T EFERNERHE
major energy and resources by the Group is as EBERWOT
follows:
2022 2023
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE RE
(BB8 (BEE
AR AR
Type Ll e  WEHES) BE  WEHES)
Consumption of FEZ(KWH) 4,907,369 27,868.5 7,257,382 29,521.6
electricity (KWH)
Consumption of fuel (L) FEHEL) 36,524 207.4 81,857 333.0
Consumption of RIARTR(IM) 41,504 235.7 299,553 1,218.5

natural gas (M9
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4.1.3 Management of packaging materials

The Group has a wide variety of original tooling
specifications, and there are pain points such as low
tooling loading rate, low versatility and large footprint.
During the Reporting Period, the Group reduced
the development cost of new tooling, reduced the
footprint of tooling, and increased the loading rate of
tooling by restructuring and disusing tooling, unifying
tooling specifications, and developing general tooling
(bag tooling/flat tooling, etc.). The Group vigorously
implemented the tooling reform to meet the needs
of diversified packaging sizes, while facilitating
warehouse management and cost control. During
the Reporting Period, the consumption of packaging
materials of the Group is as follows:

4.1.3ERHHEE

FERRIERBRESERZ FAEIE
EHEXB BRAMENGHERRER
MoBEHA FAERBBRRGFEAT
B M- IEER REBRAIE (B
RIE /TPIHRIEE) SR BER
THEREMA RO TEGMERE 12
BIRKKHFR -AEBARNRITIEX
flomEZHRIEBERTHEXRNEEK
BERAEREE RAEH KSR
AEBEGCEYHEBRAOT !

2022 2023
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE BE
(BBE8 (BEE
AR AR
Type 5 i W s B AR 2) wE  WHEES)
Packaging material (T) SET) 75 0.4 128 0.5
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4.2 Environmental Management 4.2 IRIREE

Through technological reform and innovation, the
Group constantly improves the technological process
and strives to reduce the environmental impact during
the production and operation process. The Group
increases its investment in environmental governance,
purchases environmental protection equipment to
further reduce wastewater and waste gas emissions,
and strengthens and optimizes the management and
disposal of solid waste. During the Reporting Period,
the Group spent over RMB850,000 for environmental
governance and renovation.

4.2.1 Wastewater discharge

The Group attaches great importance to emissions
and waste management. In the production process,
water is mainly used in the cooling process. Water
from sealed pipe network is used in the cooling of
the injection molding machine and the cooling of the
mould water cutting. Therefore, we do not produce
large amounts of industrial wastewater throughout the
production process. The wastewater discharged by
the Group is mainly employees’ daily life wastewater,
including toilet drainage and wash drainage. Such
wastewater will be discharged into the municipal
sewage pipe network after being treated by the
treatment facilities such as grease traps and septic
tanks, and finally enter the sewage treatment plant.
The plants are equipped with rainwater pipe network,
through which the rainwater is collected and flows
into the municipal rainwater pipe network. During the
Reporting Period, the Group met the standards for
self-inspection and mandatory sampling inspection on
wastewater.

AER BB XM N FE AN Al g
IR ENBRBREEMEEBED
WEREFZE - AEENMKRRELER
AN BERRREB E—PREEEKM
BERBIBE MM ELEREEZYN
EENRE - REPRN TEBRALB
BesB T ANIRR A EHENGS -

4.2.1 BFEKBEK

FEEREERFBYKRENER 17
TEBREFCKETEANSANIEZ X
AR RS A A AR Bk 1) &1 0% Al B %
BEHEMBEREAKER Eit > £%
BEEBEPEAEEERELXE
Ko AEBMBBKSEREBERRERET
B & 5 BE K 0 3 e I PR HE K~ R Bk
Ko DA b BE K AEBRH M s B3 F R 12
REEEERE  FATBSKER
RBREANSKEER BEREHBRK
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4.2.2 Exhaust gas emissions

The Group adopts organized emissions on dust
and organic waste gases from different stages of
the production process. The dust generated in the
production process is dedusted by a bag filter, and
a gas collecting hood is set to collect the organic
waste gas generated in the production process, and
then collected and treated by a special exhaust gas
treatment facility by “UV photolysis + activated carbon
adsorption”. After the treatment, dust and organic
waste gas are discharged through a dedicated
exhaust pipe. During the Reporting Period, the Group
met the standards for self-inspection and mandatory
sampling inspection on exhaust gas.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s emissions of
and organic waste gas are as follows:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - B REBHS

4.2.2 BEm Bt
AEBHEEBRRYTTRABHMESE
MMEMBERERFERT BHASMNH
B-BEEBRTEENNERBGAR
BERETHERE REERTSHE
EBRTEENAERERETRE K
EGRERAERBEREESRKERBIUV
N+ EERBH ARNETEE N
EMEMERCEEARAERESR
BHER - REPR AEEAERBEITR
B E ERmARRR g EE

WEMR AEESERANENERH
BUWE

Main emissions FEHBRY 2022 2023
Dust (kg) 9 EE(kg) 55.0 53.4
Nitrogen oxide (kg) KEAELE (k) 45.0 51.0
Toluene (kg) B R (kg) 60.0 58.0
Xylene (kg) ZBEX(kg) 69.0 62.0
Non-methane hydrocarbon (kg) JE B R 4B 1K (kQ) 205.0 198.4

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXIH/SEANMFERAE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, the greenhouse gas
emissions of the Group are as follows:

IRIZ - B REBHERS

BREMAR AEEBHEE REBE
mE

2022 2023
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE BE
(588 (588
AR AR
Type of greenhouse gas R E R wme  WERHES) HwE  WEEES)
CO2(T) CO-(T) 29 0.16 26 0.11

The Group insists on continuously improving
production processes and optimizing measures
for pollution prevention. The Group installed a
total of 10 environmental protection hosts and 10
exhaust cylinders on the injection molding, molding,
foaming, gumming, powder and boiler, which will be
monitored and maintained regularly to jointly promote
environmental protection.

AEBRBFIEBRERAEELIE BT
REGAEN EFBIRH  EERE
BRARE - FBERGH MR BE
THZEBFEREIEI0E  BERE10ME
T EHREER #E -RE ZEEER
RIfEo
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4.2.3 Treatment of solid waste

The solid waste generated in the production
processof the Group mainly includes domestic
garbage, production solid waste and hazardous solid
waste.

Domestic garbage is classified and collected in bags
by garbage bins and then recycled and disposed of
by the qualified sanitation department at the garbage
station.

Production solid waste is mainly the scrap produced
in the production process, such as fiberglass board,
black fabric and leather. After being collected sorted
and packaged, the scrap is temporarily stored in
the temporary storage area for general waste, and
delivered to qualified recycling units through recycling
& comprehensive utilization or regular sales. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s average scrap
produced monthly decreased by 1.2 tonnes year-on
year, due to the effective cost control measures.

Hazardous solid waste includes oil-water mixed waste
and oily solid waste, and hazardous solid waste
includes oil-water mixed waste and oily solid waste,
and mainly represent hazardous waste, such as waste
oil, waste activated carbon, used lamp and waste
titanium dioxide photocatalyst plates, etc. Waste oils
and fats are regularly entrusted to qualified disposal
suppliers by the government for safe disposal.
Activated carbon, UV photolysis lamps and titanium
dioxide photocatalyst plates are regularly replaced.
To reduce waste, the hazardous wastes generated
during the production process are collected in special
containers with classification marks and temporarily
stored in the temporary storage for hazardous waste,
and are regularly entrusted to qualified disposal
suppliers by the government for safe disposal.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXIH/SEANMFERAE
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During the Reporting Period, data of hazardous and REHRN AEBEEENEEEEYA
nonhazardous waste generated by the Group is as EBEBEEYHREBEUWT .
follows:
2022 2023
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE TE
(588 (5E8
AR AR
Type of solid waste B 8 B W EE R mE  WEHES) HE IKWDZHES)
Household waste (T) HEERIR(T) 2.3 0.0131 3.1 0.0126
Production solid waste (T) 4 E&EEE(T) 434 2.4646 353 1.4408
Hazardous solid waste (T) &M EEE(T) 1.5 0.0085 3.0 0.0122
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4.2.4 Noise management

4.3

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXIH/SEANMFERAE

The main noise sources of the Group are air
compressors, fans, injection molding machines,
pulverizers, circulation pumps, cooling towers and
other facilities. The Group selects low-noise device,
rationally plans the layout of the plant area, maintains
the various types of noise equipment indoors or at the
equipment rooms, separates material items with large
noise decibels, or adopts vibration reduction, and at
the same time, puts in place protective facilities to
ensure the safety of employees at work. In addition,
the Group sets greenbelts to reduce noise, thus
reducing the impact on the surrounding environment.

Climate Change

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
repeated its warnings and called for actions from
all walks of life to slow down the rate of global
warming. At the “Climate Action Summit” organized
by the Nations in 2019, governments and businesses
across the world undertook to take active actions to
materialize the development goal of “Zero Emission”
by 2050, and further accelerate the transition to the
low carbon economy. In the face of the increasingly
serious climate change, the Group actively took
measures in building its climate resilience.

424 EEEE
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4.3.1 Transition Risk and Physical Risks 4.3.1 B2 B fR B A8 L e

As the extreme weather is getting worse nowadays,
mitigating climate change has become a global.
In response to climate change, enterprises will
continue to develop emerging technologies, such
as switching to low-carbon energies, supporting the
shifting to low-carbon economies, which would cause
transitional risks and increase in costs. If changes
are made by governments under the “Paris Climate
Agreement”, and reduction is made to the extraction
of fossil fuel, the fuel price would be on the rise,
which may lead to increase in the production cost
of the Company. In addition, we may face more
frequent and severe extreme weather conditions, such
as floods, drought and rainstorm. Extreme weather
conditions may lead to disruptions to supply chains
and operations.

To mitigate and adapt to climate change, the Group
to explore the use of alternative energies or renewable
energies in operations, and endeavored to reduce
emission by taking effective measures and technical
approaches, such as applying recyclable packaging
appliance and optimizing factory facilities. The Group
is committed to improving the rates of resource
utilization in daily operations and reducing operating
costs by efficient management of energies, water
resources, packing materials and wastes. Meanwhile,
we actively explore in developing long-term goals for
emission reduction.

To adapt to climate change, the Group will
monitor and review the latest development of the
technologies, regulations and policies in relation to
climate change, and enhance the awareness of our
employees on heat stress related diseases.
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4.4 Environmental Achievement

During the Reporting Period, the Group was awarded
provincial and national green factories.

INNOVATION: TECHNOLOGICAL PROGRESS

AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group emphasized
the management thinking of “Strengthening innovation
and R&D”. It adopted the R&D management
systems recognized by benchmarking enterprises,
and enhanced the basic professional ability of
R&D personnel, aroused their working enthusiasm
and stimulated their competitive spirit, by offering
professional and comprehensive trainings, well
designed incentive programs and “horse racing
mechanism” for talent selection, which fully improved
our R&D capability and innovation level. During the
Reporting Period, we cooperated with benchmarking
enterprises to provide 17 trainings in our technical
center, with 58 training hours in aggregate.

R&D capacity

W EEEER
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4.4 IRIBRCEL

BERAR > AEBRE D RNER R
B

Bl RWES KBNS

WERRW ANEE R 58 A8 R 5R 67 3
WERBRR BREFEEMLEER
7 O BEEX2EMNEIRE - TEA
DEHB D ZMEREG AT ER
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396 new products (parts) developed
S96EMESR (B4) HE

30 new projects developed
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0 technological innovations

OmEEMEH

Mould development Accumulatively developed 224 sets of moulds
15 5L 3 BEARERF224F
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Enhancing Customer Experience through
Technological Innovation

In accordance with the planning of “focusing on
the design and development of heavy trucks and
strengthening the design and development of sedans”
under the Group’s “2+2 strategy”, the technical center
introduced internationally advanced management
system and management standards, and is currently
conducting in-depth cooperation with the leading
design companies in the industry. By adhering to
the management concept of “quality and cost are
rooted in design”, and the mission of “providing
customers with satisfactory interior system solutions”,
we are always committed to creating long-term
value for customers. During the Reporting Period,
we developed 23 types of vehicle interior products,
involving the fields of interior and exterior decoration
and rearview mirrors of heavy trucks and dashboards
for passenger vehicles, seat plastic parts, lane
departure protection covers, etc. During the Reporting
Period, the Group spent over RMB10 million in
technologies and R&D.

process for plastic injection parts

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted
constant temperature and humidity equipment
to complete the upgrading and innovation of the
water-boiling process. The dimensional stability

and quality stability of precision plastic injection

products were improved significantly,

with

significant improvement in production efficiency and
reduction in energy consumption and labor costs.
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Renovation and innovation of
mold cooling method

BERA LA S A BUSR

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed
the transformation and innovation of the cooling
method of enameled molds. The air-cooling method
was transformed into a water-cooling-based air-
cooling auxiliary method, which significantly
shortened the cooling time and improved the
production efficiency.

Innovation in the automation transformation
of small plastic injection molding robots

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted
six-axis robots to assist in the production of small
plastic components, realizing automatic pick-
up of small plastic components, automatic water
port cutting, automatic recycling of machine edge
water and mouth materials, etc., which significantly
improved the production efficiency and the on-site
58.
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Standardization of plastic injection molds

and equipment

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed
the standardized transformation of plastic injection
molds and equipment through the transformation of
the positioning ring of plastic injection molds and
the casting sleeves of injection molding machines,
which solved the limitation of mismatch between
molds and injection molding machines, improved
the versatility of molds, reduced the use time of
molds above and below, and improved production
efficiency.

IRIZ - B REBHERS
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5.2

Continuous Improvement and Enhancement

The Group implements pragmatic recommendations,
leads and encourages all employees to identify
opportunities for improvement in work. It forms a
team to review pragmatic recommendations and
follow up their implementation, so as to reduce
work cost, increase work efficiency, ensure product
quality and improve operation conditions. During
the Reporting Period, the Group implementedi74
pragmatic recommendations, generating an actual
income of RM521,500.

5.2

FENESHIREFHA
AEBRKBTEMNSBLRSE JIENH
BE2RBE T TEPNER
THoHEERTBESELCEZER LR
EoEBELLREERE  KEMBEERT
EFREA RBRAIERE - REERES
M ERERRT - BRERR AEBRH
EWESECERI174E EE SRR
52.158 5 °

Summary of excellent pragmatic recommendations in 2023

020FBELELEE
Type of Commencement Completion Actual Monthly
No. Project Name Improvement Date Date Income (RMB)
BERAWE
R ER%H HERY HiaEE SR B ()
1 Repair, rectification and optimization of a  Reduce costs 2023-8-21 2023-8-31 36,750.00
mold
EEEEBENE® PR AL A
2 Bubble bag recycling Reduce costs 2023-5-19 2023-6-19 18,222.03
RAREKENA RAEAA
3 Transformation and reuse of materials in a Reduce costs 2023-10-18 2023-11-18 11,187.09
stranded warehouse
ErEMHELENA R A
4 Proposal for cost improvement of a product Reduce costs 2023-02-23 2023-03-14 3,595.00
ERARTRRENE AR A
5 Improvement of product deformation Reduce costs 2023-03-08 2023-09-21 1,575.00
EEREFYE R A
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5.3 Carrying out Industry-universities-research
Cooperation Projects
The Group vigorously carries out industry-university
research cooperation projects, introduces high-quality
resources from universities and society, and maintains
the advanced research and development capacity.

Appointment of Dr. Chu Jianjie as the

Chief Expert of Group

Dr. Chu Jianjie, an associate professor of the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Northwestern Polytechnical
University, is mainly engaged in the research of fields
including industrial product design and development,
industrial design of equipment manufacturing, and
ergonomic evaluation technology. Mr. Chu has been the
deputy director of the Key Laboratory of Industrial Design
and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical University since
2018 and the deputy director of the Shaanxi Industrial
Design and Development Center of Northwestern
Polytechnical University. He has won various awards such
as the second prize of the National Teaching Achievement
Award and the third prize of the Shaanxi Science and
Technology Progress Award.

Dr. Chu Jianjie has been the chief expert of the Group since
2019, focusing on the research of fields including digital
design, product design, simulation of ergonomic design,
and development of new products.

IRIZ - B REBHERS
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Industry-university-research cooperation with the Key
Laboratory of Industrial Design and Ergonomics of

the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of
Northwestern Polytechnical University

Northwestern Polytechnical University is the only
multidisciplinary and research-oriented university in China
that is simultaneously developing education and research
programs in the fields of aeronautics, astronautics, and
marine technology engineering. It is now affiliated to the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology. It is one
of the universities of the “211 Project”, “985 Project” and
“First-class Universities” (Class A) in China. As one of the
earliest universities in China to develop talents for modern
industrial design, conduct scientific research and provide
design services, Northwestern Polytechnical University is
a vice-chairman of China Industrial Design Association,
a vice president of Innovation Design Alliance of China
and the Industrial Design Institution of China Mechanical
Engineering Society, and a deputy chairman of the Teaching
Steering Subcommittee of Industrial Design of the Ministry of
Education, and has high status and good reputation in the
domestic industrial design community.

Northwestern Polytechnical University has been devoted
to the research of fields including digital design, product
design, simulation of ergonomic design and development
of new products. It has undertaken dozens of major and
technological research projects such as the National 863
Program, the National Science and Technology Support
Plan, the National Natural Science Foundation, the National
Manned Space Project, and the Basic Research on National
Defense.

The Group carried out industry-university-research
cooperation with the Key Laboratory of Industrial Design
and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical University,
and provided design services and technical support for
developing new products by leveraging the resources of the
Key Laboratory of Industrial Design and Ergonomics of the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, Shaanxi
Industrial Design Engineering Laboratory, Shaanxi Industrial
Design and Development Center and other provincial
platforms, focused on the design of automotive interior parts
in the field of industrial design, and conducted in-depth
research on key common technologies continuously, so as to
maintain the advanced nature of research and development
of key design technologies.
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Cooperation with Xi’an Jiaotong University to Conduct

the “Smart Factory Planning and Development” Project

Xi’an Jiaotong University is a comprehensive research-
oriented national key university directly under the Ministry of
Education in China as part of the national “Double First-class
Universities”, the “211 Project” and the “985 Project”. It is
also one of the key universities in China during the “Seventh
Five-Year Plan Period” and the “Eighth Five-Year Plan Period”
and is included in the “Everest Plan”, the “Strengthening
Foundation Plan”, the “2011 Plan”, the “111 Plan”, the
“Education and Cultivation Plan for Excellent Engineers”,
the “Education and Cultivation Plan for Excellent Doctors”
and the “Education and Cultivation Plan for Excellent Law
Talents”. Besides, it is also the chairman of China Artificial
Intelligence Alliance.

Mr. Sun Xinyu is a professor and doctoral supervisor of
the Industrial Engineering and Operation Management
Department of the Management College of Xi’an Jiaotong
University, senior programmer, member of the “key laboratory
of process control and efficiency engineering” of the Ministry
of Education, member of the young top talent support plan of
Xi'an Jiaotong University, and director of the Xi’an Jiaotong
University —BAYES Data Intelligence Joint Lab. His research
areas include e-commerce operation management and
marketing optimization based on big data, supply chain and
logistics management, measurement and statistical analysis
and operation model optimization. He has close cooperation
relationship with the National Public Credit Information
Center, China UnionPay, China Telecom and other companies
and stable sources of big data, and has established its own
data assets.

The Group collaborated with the Xi'an Jiaotong University
and the Sun Xinyu’s research group to develop the project of
“Planning and Construction of Smart Factory”, which focused
on the overall planning of the factory’s intelligent production,
the design of a standardized production model, and the
analysis and realization of automatic production requirements
and the digital operation and simulation optimization of
Production workshops and the establishment of digital
models, aiming at building the “Smart Factory, Digital Twin”.
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Industry-university-research cooperation with Xi’an

niversity of Posts & Telecommunications

The purpose of this cooperation is to better combine the
teaching and scientific research of schools with the practical
production of enterprises, to promote the fulfillment of
the talent cultivation goal of higher education and the
technological progress of the production of enterprises, to
fully leverage the advantages of higher education schools
and enterprises in talent resource, scientific research and
production practice, to promote the industrialization of the
technological results of schools, to improve the teaching
and scientific research levels of schools, to enhance the
ability of schools to serve the society and to sharpen the
core competitiveness of enterprises.

The Group has conducted a comprehensive cooperation
with Xi’an University of Posts & Telecommunications
in talent cultivation, scientific research, education and
teaching, and industry university-research cooperation
between school and enterprise, jointly built an off-campus
practice education base for college students, a talent
cultivation base for enterprises and a base for conversion
of scientific research achievements, whereby forming
a landscape of mutual promotion and development of
professions and industries, and strived to achieve “school-
enterprise cooperation and industry-school win-win”.
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5.4 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group has established a three-in-one intellectual
property system of patents, trademarks and
copyrights, and has implemented innovation-oriented
and high-quality development.

The Group has a total of 30 patents, 28 authorized
patents including 2 invention patents, 1 design patent
and 25 utility model patents, and has 1 trademark two
invention patents are under review. Invention patents
and design patents are applied to the major products
of the Group and are the core process technology.
The utility model patents are mainly used for the
improvement of production equipment and process
methods to realize the purposes of achieving energy
saving and emission reduction, improving production
efficiency, mitigating labor intensity, eliminating hidden
safety hazards and reducing labor costs. During the
Reporting Period, added 3 new authorized patents,
and applied for 2 patents pending approval.

The Group mainly protects its intellectual property
rights through online tracking and rights protection
litigation. Besides, when our sales and R&D staff
discover competitive products or marketing materials
that may infringe the intellectual property rights of
the Group, they will immediately notify the legal
department, which will then follow up and conduct the
investigation.

The Group has established an innovation incentive
mechanism to encourage technical R&D personnel
to boldly innovate, design and develop special
equipment with independent intellectual property
rights by utilizing the advanced process technologies
and equipment in the industry, and quickly transform it
into productive forces and put it into production, thus
promoting the automotive and intelligent production
process.
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6. WIN-WIN: MAKING PROGRESS AND

BUILDING A BRIGHT FUTURE TOGETHER

6.1 Win-win: Satisfactory Customer Services

6.1.1 Management system for customer services
During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
to strictly implement the site customer service
management systems, standards and regulations
such as the “Guidance on the Management of
Site Customer Emergency” and the “Regulation
on the Processing and Management of Customer
Information”, and strived to provide customers with
quality products and services to meet their diversified
needs.

For after-sales services, we arranged dedicated in-
factory commercial vehicles and passenger vehicles
after-sales service personnel at the customer’s
office, and conducted after-sales interview with
customers through email, WeChat, telephone, face-
to-face interview and other means, with the customer
satisfaction continuously improved. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was honored the title
of “Excellent Supplier with Production Supporting
Services for the Year” from our customer.
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6.1.2 Customer complaints management procedures

We attach great importance to customer demands
and have established procedures under the
Regulation on the Processing and Management
of Customer Information, which divides customer
complaints into two categories, verbal complaints and
written complaints. After receiving complaints from
customers, we will complete the After-Sales Quality
Tracking Record and set up WeChat communication
group with relevant departments to establish an
analysis team as soon as possible. To ensure that
customer complaints are handled in a timely manner,
we have established complete procedures for
processing customer complaint information, as shown

B -HERELRKRS

6.1.2 ZiF EE g

RMEBERETRFR BLT(ER
EEREEERTE)RE  BRERLKHN
HOAOEBLEEEBEME - ZE
ERERFE KAMATER(EREER
BRH LB R ) 0 5 — B B S 48 B &P
FIBUMERRBERIL DN /NAE B R
EEFRENFAME  RMARLT XS
NERBREREERE  WHMAT:

Customer complaints of
the host factory o
F K E R

below:

Feedback of problem points PY

Pre-project problem

AU HATE B [ &

Pre-project team

confirmation of diagnosis @

A1 A 18 B 43 w58 32

Pre-project team evaluation

of repair solutions

AR B AT IR IE S 5

Simple
categories
after-sales onsite
repair
5 B 48
ERRGRIE

i 78 Bf % B8R

o Mass production projects problem

BERBMAE

Confirmation of diagnosis by after
sale team leader or engineer ()

ERMRITEMEDS

Evaluation of rework solutions by
@ after sale team leader or engineer @

ERMRUTIEMIGEEREL R

oI Unmanageable

categories .
technical categorles-
TS (Y (external) aid

repair r:e_p!acemgnt
% WmARIESE
5 1 45 3 4 St

Confirmation of effects

Closure of problems

MR R

i =8 i B

—>

NG

—

) 4

Confirmation of
problem points o
il =E B 7 5T

A 4

Emergency
containment o

P& = 38

) 4

Checking and analysis

HED

) 4

Development of
improvement plans ®
#l & 24 & 5t &

A 4

Validation of
improvement plans ©
CEREL L

) 4

Solidification of
improvement measures ©®

E {628 & 15 5k

) 4

Conclusion of lessons
learned o

AR 1 1 B B

) 4

Closure of the
problems ()
i =2 A BA

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2023

73



74

IRIE - B REBHS

During the Reporting Period, we included indicators
such as the timeliness of completion of customer
complaint and customer satisfaction in the
Performance Assessment Form, which stipulated that
the feedback and tracking of customer complaints
must be evidenced by corresponding “Analysis and
Rectification Report of Problem”, and reviewed
the number of customer complaints and timeliness
of completion on a monthly basis. Meanwhile,
we carried out the customer satisfaction survey
on an annual basis according to the “Customer
Satisfaction Evaluation Procedure”, involving 5 project
modules such as quality, delivery, service, price, and
suggestions for improvement. After the completion
of the survey, we investigated and summarized the
items with low individual scores and complaints in
customers’ messages, and discussed improvement
measures, and finally formed the “Analysis Report of
Customer Satisfaction”.

In addition to the management of individual complaint
cases, we also summarized and analyzed customer
complaints every month to identify the source of the
problem, optimized the solution from the source, and
formed the “Monthly Customer Complaint Analysis
Report”, so as to analyze the causes and determine
the responsible person, as well as formulate
corrective measures and track verification results. If
quality problems with potential risk were identified, we
would send a quality alert and follow up to solve the
problem as soon as possible. During the Reporting
Period, the amount of customer complaint issues of
the Group was 158, decreasing by 1.25% year on
year.
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6.1.3F5FZfI7:E

6.1.3 Protection of customer privacy

It is our responsibility and obligation to protect
customer privacy and security of business
information. We strictly comply with the laws
and regulations in relation to the “Confidentiality
Agreement” entered into with customers, and strictly
protect the privacy information of customers.

We are also committed to protecting the privacy and
confidentiality of the personal data of our employees,
customers, suppliers, business partners and other
identifiable parties. For the use of information,
we have restricted the level and authorization of
information available to employees, and require
employees to prudently handle customer data in
accordance with the authorization. Employees
may have access to relevant customer data only
when there is a supportable reason, and the use of
customer data is limited to the purposes as specified
in our contract.

6.2 Win-win: Partnership with Suppliers
6.2.1 Establishing win-win partnership with suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the Group developed
over 20 new high-quality suppliers under the principal
of establishing win-win partnership with supplier. We
committed to introduce domestic renowned high-
quality suppliers with industrial leading position.
In order to guarantee that the product quality
of the Group can be improved continuously, we
organized several technical exchanges and visiting
study activities with domestic renowned material
enterprises.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had 132
material suppliers, among which 87% of suppliers
were located in the eight provinces as follows:

Distribution of suppliers (Top 8 provinces)
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We maintain close contact with suppliers. During the
Reporting Period, in order to improve the quality of
supplier, we continuously adopted below measures:
unifying standards; conducting performance test
and spot check on the main materials; eliminating
the suppliers appeared in the black list for several
consecutive years based on the performance
documents of suppliers; for suppliers who had quality
problems repeatedly, conducting regular interviews
and training and enhancing the quality awareness
of suppliers. In addition, we have conducted in-
depth exchanges and communication with suppliers
on new technologies and processes for passenger
vehicles and heavy trucks’ interiors, so as to provide
customers with satisfactory products.

We examine in advance and review new suppliers
“Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Qualification”, the
“Guidance on Evaluation and Selection of Potential
Suppliers” and the “Guidance on the Review of
Suppliers of Productive Materials” every year.
After the suppliers passing the review, we conduct
comprehensive performance evaluation on the supply
position of suppliers through procedural documents
such as the “Procedures for Managing and Controlling
Supplies”, the “Guidance on Regular Evaluation of
Suppliers of Productive Materials”, and check the
suppliers on the red list and black list based on the
evaluation results of suppliers’ performance. We will
provide specific assistance and help to suppliers
on the black list for improvement and eliminate
those who still cannot meet the supply requirements
after such guidance in accordance with the “Work
Instruction on Improvement of Suppliers’ Capability”.
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6.2.2Continuing to promote suppliers’ social

responsibilities

While continuously strengthening its own management
of sustainable development, the Group takes the
lead in promoting the ecological management system
for the sustainable development of the entire supply
chain. Suppliers are evaluated from five aspects
according to the Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Social
Responsibilities, namely labor rights, health and
safety, environmental protection, business ethics,
and requirements of management system. For high
quality suppliers with higher ranking of performance,
we will give support through increasing the share
and developing new projects in the same conditions
in accordance with the “Management Rules for
Motivation of Suppliers” and the “Management rules
for Supplier Quota and Switching”; for suppliers
with lower ranking of performance, especially those
who violate relevant requirements, rectification is
required within a time limit, failure to do so, we will
restrict business cooperation opportunities until the
cooperation is terminated.

Meanwhile, we include safety and environment
management and social responsibility related clauses
in the “Purchase Contract” signed with suppliers,
which clearly requires that the products provided
by suppliers must comply with the national laws,
regulations and rules on safety and environment, as
well as meet the operation concept of protection
of employee’s rights and environmental protection.
The Group keeps close contact with suppliers, holds
several exchange meetings with suppliers, conducts
professional technical communication on raw
materials and packing materials, to jointly pursue how
to apply the new environment-friendly materials with
greener and better sustainable development functions
in our products.
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6.3 Win-win: Share Development Results with 6.3 #F : HETHZTHERE
Employees
6.3.1 Employment overview

6.3.1 EVFHER

The Group pays great attention to the labor rights and
interests of our employees, and strictly complies with
the provisions of the “Labor Contract Law” of China
and other labor laws and regulations. It formulates
other employment terms on working hours, and
holidays, so as to effectively protect the legitimate
and reasonable rights and interests of our employees.
We never permit the use of any forced labor.

We have a fair and transparent staff recruitment and
employment process, forbid to recruit and use child
labor, conduct background investigation for the newly
recruited employees, put an end to illegal employment
of child labor and the phenomenon of forced labor.
We have a highly transparent recruitment process,
and is committed to providing fair employment
opportunities and creating a respectful work
environment for our employees. The Group advocates
anti-discrimination and formulates relevant policies to
treat others with fairness and dignity. Our recruitment
of employees will be based on a range of diversity,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
In the case of dismissal, the Labor Contract of
employees who do not meet the requirements of the
Labor Law will be terminated according to the Labor
Law and the Company’s rules and regulations.
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As of 31 December 2023, there were 361 employees

in the Group.

Number of employees by gender

BRUENBDETAK

71%

O Male 8 @ Female &

Number of employees by ranking of positions
RERIIETAK
7%
® 6%

o 3%
(]

y

85%

@ senior 54 @ Middle 4

@ Junior T4k General — &

B E2023F12HB31H AEBBHESE
EE361%°

Number of employees by age
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10% ®
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@® 20-34 years old @ 35-49 years old

205%-345% 355%-495%
@ More than 50 years old
5068 4 £

Number of employees by region
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@
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@ h Shaanxi Province
=

@ Outside Shaanxi Province
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During the Reporting Period, Employee turnover by

gender, age group and region as follows:

Turnover of employees by gender

BIERBI D EERK

® Male 8 @ Female &

Turnover of employees by ranking of positions
RERB D EERK

20
o 10%

>
4

@ Senior &% @ Middle F4k
© Junior T4k

84%

General —f%
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Turnover of employees by age
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C

47%
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()
@® 20-34 years old @ 35-49 years old
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@ More than 50 years old
5058 L =

Turnover of employees by region
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@ Outside Shaanxi Province
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The remuneration policy of our Group is based
on employees’ performance, qualifications,
competence and rewards to them with reference to
comparable market level. Remuneration package
typically comprises salaries and other benefits,
discretionary bonuses and retirement benefits scheme
contributions. We have established a scientific and
reasonable salary system with market competitiveness
in accordance with the TES system, and determine
the staff salary scales and levels in accordance with
the ranking of positions and market level based on
the present condition of the Company. Under the
“Employee Performance Management Procedures”,
the Group has adopted a diversified performance
evaluation mechanism covering the personal KPI
assessment results of employees, the scores
given by higher competent department heads and
the completion percentage of weekly work plan;
it regularly adjusts salary scales and levels and
increases employee compensation and benefits
in accordance with the “Management Measure for
Salary Level”, etc.; under the principle of “openness,
fairness, impartiality, equality, competition and
selection”, the Group regularly conducts the internal
competition and employment and the professional
technological sequence assessment to select those
with outstanding performance and working hard
for taking important posts. With the management
concept of “co-creation and win-win”, the Group
continued to establish effective staff motivation
mechanisms including the cost reduction motivation
plan for all staff, the sales motivation plan for all staff,
the budget motivation plan, etc., and achieved the
sharing of the development results of the Group with
staff. During the Reporting Period, the Group carried
out 7 internal competitive selections with 8 employees
promoted, and two professional technological
sequence assessments with three associate senior
engineer and 10 first-class engineers assessed,
which helped the Group promote the establishment of
the talent team and the organizational development
and construction of the Group while fully enhancing
the sense of achievement and happiness of its
employees.
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We have been committed to providing diversified and
superior benefits to employees and creating a better
working environment. In addition to statutory benefits,
we have in place a benefit system with diversity.

a )\
Diverse benefit system

ZrtEMER

Statutory benefits
%= E AR A

Activity welfare

o B 48 & T

Other welfare
HE@H

Staff welfare

BIREF

\§ J

6.3.2 Staff training and development

The Group provides a variety of trainings for all
employees to improve their comprehensive skills and
meet their needs of positions. Induction trainings
on regulations at group and department level, job
duties, working skills, safety production and career
development program, etc. familiarize our employees
with the Group as soon as practicable and make
them fit in with their respective positions. For on
the-job employees, the Group provides targeted
training tailored to their career development and
encourages employees to participate in job-related
training organized by external organizations, whereby
enriching our employees’ professional knowledge and
comprehensive abilities. In addition, the Group invites
excellent industrial professional personnel to provide
high-quality training contents for employee, enabling
the employees to acquire advanced professional
knowledge and management philosophy.
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Other welfare H & 18 7l

v Free employee quarters (air
conditioner, heating, wifi)
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V' Meal allowance
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v/ Employee anniversary
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During the Reporting Period, we established our
internal trainer team and developed more than 8
courses internally, with an aim to extract outstanding
practices and impart them to all of our employees.
We organized 150 group-level online and offline
trainings and 110 department-level trainings, with 361
employees participated and totally 40,968 training

REHAR AEEBRERANIMMKRMA A
B ESHPFIRE EEXTENMEFTER
TEE2EEI -HABEERE LiF
TEH150IB > PR EIN110IE 2
BB T361 A EIABZERFZ40,968/)
BF o

hours.
The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training

BB SZIEEGLERTHR2IEE
Male Female
Gender 14 31 E= %
Number of trainees 23 A 230 130
Headcount YN 231 130
Proportion of trainees 25lMh L 99% 100%
Average training duration (in hours) EH2IBE () 95 98

The proportion of trainees by position level and the average duration of training

BRI SRIEESLERFEHZINEE
Senior Middle Junior General
management management management staff
Position level 4 4R SHREER FHREER VHREERE —mRET
Number of trainees 2l ANH 25 16 12 300
Headcount PN 25 16 12 308
Proportion of trainees  23ll{4LE 100% 100% 100% 97%

Average training TH2IIEE (NE)

duration (in hours) 100 90 50 30
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SMC professional Mold product knowledge Safety production training

knowledge training training Z2E EE
SMCE 241 # 1% 3l B A E oA #H S

Material attribute training Project development Financial knowledge
R M 15 B training training
BB MEEN B 75 A 1E B
6.3.3 Health and safety of employees 6.3.35THEMEZL

The Group has always attached great importance AEB-—RNeaEERETINREHRZE
to the health and safety of the employees, and 2 R NAETRHEHZE2NITFIRIE
is committed to providing employees with a safe BETIBEEBRE - AERBEKE
working environment to avoid occupational hazards. TR EAREMNBEBERBBE)
The Group strictly abides by the “Law of the People’s (PEAREHEFAMEZZ2EEE) ~ (F
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of EANREMBEHEBRE) SEBERNER
Occupational Diseases”, the “Safe Production Law TE °

of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Fire Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, and other laws and
regulations.
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The Group requires the newly recruited employees to
carry the entry medical examination report and pays
five social insurances and one housing fund (Fp&
—%) and commercial insurance for the employees
according to the statutory requirements. In order to
enrich the spare-time life of employees, we establish
the staff room equipped with the facilities including
table tennis, badminton, chess, treadmill and karaoke,
enhancing the staff physical exercise. We attach
importance to employee sports and set up table
tennis, basketball and badminton sports venues and
facilities for employees to exercise. We have placed
safety infrastructures and implemented relevant safety
policies in order to ensure equipment safety and
prevent or minimize exposure to hazardous materials.
During the Reporting Period, we have revised more
than 10 safety management documents, including the
Safe Production Responsibility System(({Z&4£ ESF
%)), the Hidden Hazards Inspection and Rectification
System({fE B HEHBIEHE)), the Regulations
on the Management of Safety Accidents ((Z& %
WEIEIE)), the Safety Education System({Z =
HESIE)), etc., providing guidance to employees
in maintaining a safe working environment, and we
have assigned responsibility for maintaining safe work
spaces to each department. We have established
the Safety Management Committee consisting of
representatives from management and employees.
The Safety Management Committee ensures that all
responsible departments conduct safety training,
report accidents and implement accident prevention
procedures. The Group also has fire prevention
facilities and conducts fire drills on a regular basis.
Production employees receive regular training
on equipment operation and occupational safety
equipment. We have also adopted incident handling
policies, in order to minimize losses and improve our
response time in incident handling.

During the past three years (including the Reporting
Period), the Group did not suffer any significant work-
related injuries or fatalities caused by work, and
there were no lost days due to work injury during the
Reporting Period. We have complied with all relevant
laws, regulations and administrative regulations in all
major aspects of health and work safety, and have not
received penalties from PRC regulatory authorities.
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Annual Occupational Health Examining

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively
conducted the annual occupational health
examining, regularly reviewed the current status
of occupational sanitation, and organized 69 staff
at the positions that would cause occupational
diseases for targeted physical examination
according to the occupational sanitation
assessment report and the annual occupationa
health examining.
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6.3.4 Care for Employments

The Group is committed to create a harmonious,
warm and united working environment for employees,
and cares for every employee from various aspects,
including basic necessities of life. We not only
consider employee’s benefit, but also hope to convey
our caring for employees to their family members.

Holiday welfare

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided
diversified premium holiday activity welfares, created
holiday atmosphere, warranted the welfares to the
employees and enhanced their sense of happiness. The
welfares included “New Year Greetings and Welfares
to Warm and Care for People (GhERIRZEEH > 22
REEERE A0y) ", “Staying True to Original Aspiration and
Living Up to Youth (RS#0 > REFEEE)”, “Dragon Boat
Festival One Year, Health One Year (—&F —iH4 > —pk—
ZRE)”, and “Celebrating Mid-Autumn Festival with a Full
Moon (fE{F BB, and other diversified holiday
welfares.
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Visits to employees and their

During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out heart-
warming activities for employees and their families,
held chairman luncheon for senior employees, and sent
condolences and gifts to the families of employees who
were stationed outside the province or stationed abroad.

6.4

in-win: Actively Fulfilling Social Responsibility

The Group is keen on the public welfare undertakings
to promote the harmonious development of society.
We have participated in a number of public welfare
activities in the fields of charitable donation,
environmental protection and voluntary services, and
actively exerted its influence to provide women and
children in communities with needed explanation.

As a responsible group, we believe that we can
promote the harmonious development of society by
actively fulfilling the social responsibility of improving
people’s livelihood. The management of the Group
encourages all employees to proactively participate
in community activities and hopes to contribute
efforts to improve and help address the issues
affecting the well-being of local residents through
their personal actions. The Group insists on fulfilling
its own social responsibility, closely cooperates with
the government, hospitals, charities, media and other
organizations to actively participate in public welfare
activities.
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APPENDIX: THE CONTENT INDEX FOR THE [i$% : 8K RIBIE
GUIDANCE OF ESG REPORT OF HKEX REIESIRABT RS

HtERER

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section

TESHE B —REERBRENER KRB

A. Environment

A BE

ASPECT Af: General disclosure Information on 4, Focus:
EMISSIONS (a) the policies; and Supremacy of
BEA1 : HEY (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Environmental

issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, Protection and

and generation of hazardous and nonhazardous waste.

Green Operation

—REE 4, Hi:
BHBERRAZERBHN ARt HNES EERREEENNELSEN . REELHREL
(@) BR; R 5
b) BTHETABBAZENEREIERRANER
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 4.2 Environmental
RMREMIEEAT  HEMRE AR EE- Management
42 BIEEE
KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas 4.2.2 Exhaust Gas
MAEEBAIEIZA1.2  emissions (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit Emissions
of production volume, per facility). 422 BRIM
E# EE) REREE EE) AERBEHRE WEHE) K
(ER) ZE WUSESEQ BERMEHE)
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where 4.2.3 Treatment of
RSB IIEITA1.3  appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per solid waste
facility). 423 BEREEMREE
MELESEENMEE QBB &k ER BE MUEES
B BRI o
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where 4.2.3 Treatment of
MEBIIEITA14  appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per solid waste
facility). 423 BEREEMREE
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IBHE B —REERBRERER KRB
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 4.2 Environmental
MEEIISIEALS  them. Management
WP NN EE R RAEIEL B RTRRN S 42 BRIEERE
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 4.2.3 Treatment of
MAEBIEIZA1.6  handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps solid waste
taken to achieve them. 423 EREENEE
HIREEEREERRYNAE RELMEIINABEERR
REELEEMEMNY o
ASPECT A2: General disclosure 41 Save Resources
USE OF RESOURCES Policies on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and other raw materials. 4.1 &R
BEA2 . ERER —RRE
BRERER (BREER KREMEME) BEE-
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. 4.1.2 Management of
RBEBIIEIZA2.1  electricity, gas or oll) in total (KWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per Energy
unit of production volume, per facility). 412 BEREE
RENAANERR/RERER (IS Gah) BEE UUF
BFREHE RPE MUSEEEN BERMHE)
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 4.1.1 Management of
FARENIEEA2.2  production volume, per facility). Water Resource
BEKEREBE MUSESEN -GERME) 411 KEREE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken 4.1 Save Resources
BREMIEIZA2.3  to achieve them. 41 EBINER

WA INERERNn B RRARIELERMERNS
o
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IBHE B —REERBRERER KRB
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that 4.1.1 Management of
RREMIEIEA2.4 s it for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to Water Resource
achieve them. 411 KERER
HKEGBEA KR P B EREE URMT I ARG SR
RAENEEERMEBNTSER-
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tons) and,  4.1.3 Management
RREIIEIEA2.5  if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. of Packaging
HUpRrrAaEMRNEE WEE Kk WER) S£EEMW Materials
go 413 BEMBER
ASPECT A3: General disclosure 4.2 Environmental
THE ENVIRONMENT  Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural Management
AND NATURAL resources. 42 RIEEE
RESOURCES —iRE
BEAS : BERRAERARETABRERAREREMERT 2HNHE-
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 4.2 Environmental
MEBAIEITA3.1  environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Management
manage them. 42 RIEEE
B ES TR RERAAERNEAR ERERNEEEH
FENTHo
ASPECT A4: General disclosure 4.3  Climate Change
CLIMATE CHANGES  Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have 4.3 SIE&1t
EBEAd: RIZE(E impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—REE
B REH R EHETARERENEARBEREENER-
KPIA4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 4.3  Climate Change
MBEBAIEIZA41  impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the 43 REREM

actions taken to manage them.
HIEEARIEEHETAELRENEARBHEESE RE
HiTHo
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IBHE B —REERBRERER KRB
B. Society
B #E
EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES
BRKRHIER
ASPECT Bf1: General disclosure. 6.3.1 Employment
EMPLOYMENT Information on: Overview
EEB1: ER (a) the policies; and 6.3.1 ER#ER
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits.
—REE
ERENRGE BREESH TERE BB FEHE Lt REGURHMEE
REFH
(@) BUR; K
b) BTHETABBARENEMEIERRANER
KPI B1.1 Total number of employees by gender, type of employment, age 6.3.1 Employment
RBERIEIEBI.1  group and region. Overview
‘it BRER ERARN KGR DNEEES - 6.3.1 BN
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover by gender, age group and region. 6.3.1 Employment
MRENIEEBI2 BURN FRANKMEADNES AKX Overview
6.3.1 BN
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IBHE B —REERBRERER KRB
ASPECT B2: General disclosure 6.3.3 Health and
HEALTH AND SAFETY Information on: Safety of
E@mB2: BEEZ2 (a) the policies; and Employees
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact onthe  6.3.3 ETEEM%Z2
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—RRE
BRRHZE2IRRERGEESEEHEEEEN
(@) BX; &
b) BFHETABBAZENEMAERROANER
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the  6.3.3 Health and
MASEMERISIEB2.1  past three years including the reporting year. Safety of
BEZF (OEAERFE) SFRITHRNABRILE. Employees
633 BIEENZZ
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 6.3.3 Health and
PRENIEEB22 RIGBAIEEH. Safety of
Employees
6.33 BIREMNZZ
KPI B2.3 Describe the occupational health and safety measures adopted 6.3.3 Health and
FAREMIEEB2.3  and how they are implemented and monitored. Safety of
HIPTERANEEREEL 2B URERRTRER R Fo Employees
6.33 BIRENZZ
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

TERR EE —REERMBANER

Disclosure Section

REEH

ASPECT B3:
DEVELOPMENT AND
TRAINING
Em@B3 : FRRIE

ASPECT B4:
LABOUR STANDARDS
EEB4 : T8

General disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

—RBE

BRI EERT TIFR SRR B R R BRI BUR - #5315 %) o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee

RREMIEIER31  category (e.g., senior management, middle management).
rUENRESERN MEREERE -PREEES) ANNTIIIE
EEEpiNu

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender

MIEAERISIER3.2  and employee category.

BRI RERERE D ShEETARNN TR

General disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—REE

BRAMEETHRHSTH

(@) BUR; K

b) BTHETABBARENEMEIERRANER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
RISREMIEIEB41  child and forced labour.

B AREEANERNERET RRFIS o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
MAEEISIEB4.2  discovered.

BREERERBREERERERAERNT R

6.3.2 Staff Training and
Development

6.32 BIREIE%ER

6.3.2 Staff Training and

Development

6.32 BIREIE%ER

6.3.2 Staff Training and
Development
6.3.2 BIFEIIHER

6.3.1 Employment

Overview

6.3.1 EEHR

6.3.1 Employment

Overview
6.3.1 ER#ER
6.3.1 Employment
Overview

6.3.1 EREER
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IBHE B —REERBRERER KRB
Operational Practice

EERA

ASPECT B5: General disclosure 6.2.2 Continuing
SUPPLY CHAIN Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain. to Promote
MANAGEMENT —RiE the Suppliers’

BEBS5 : HEHEERE

EEHRENREREERBRER-

KPI B5.1
RSB AR 2L1512B5.1

KPI B5.2
RASEARANIE18B5.2

KPI B5.3
RASEARANIE1RB5.3

KPI B5.4
RS IRANIERB5.4

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
mimEE S NHEEEE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

HRBRRERHERENED nHRTEREMNMEEHE
UEREREANTRER %o

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
BABAANEEESERENRERT T ERNES  UKE
BETRERR e

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

BT REMRERREESARRERRRBENESG  LURAH
HITRERAHE.

., LTD BRI SENEHEERAR

6.2.2

6.2.1

6.2.1

6.2.1

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.2

6.2.2

6.2.2

Social
Responsibilities
REREDLEY
HEEAR

Establishing
Win-win
Partnership with
Suppliers
BUSHFLRN
HhRER B R A

Establishing
Win-win
Partnership with
Suppliers
BUSHFLRN
MEBBHEG

Continuing

to Promote

the Suppliers’
Social
Responsibilities
FEREMHEY
HEEM

Continuing

to Promote

the Suppliers’
Social
Responsibilities
REREDLEY
HEER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIZ - B REBHERS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IBHE B —REERBRERER KRB
ASPECT B6: General disclosure 3.2 Integrity:
PRODUCT Information on: Qualityoriented
RESPONSIBILITY (a) the policies; and 32 HE EEARX
[BEB6 : EREME (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress.
—RRE
BRREERNRENREEZE BS RERMEZTURBRAEN
(@) B K
(b) BFHETABEARZ ENERARRAONER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for ~ 3.2.4 Quick Response
RREINIEIEB6.1  safety and health reasons. to Quality
BEFRERERRETRZ2 AREEAMABRKNET At Issues
3.24 BERRER
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and ~ 6.1.2 Customer
MISEEIEIER6.2  how they are dealt with. Complaints
REMRERRRBENEHFBEURESAZE- Management
Procedures
6.1.2 BHEERE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 5.4 Protection of
MABAIEIER6.3  intellectual property rights. Intellectual
R R REA A EREBNIEG - Property Rights
54 HMBERRE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 3.2 Integrity: Quality
MRENIEREB64 HIAEERTEEREREWER - oriented
32 #HfiE BEAXK
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, 6.1.3 Protection
FREMIEEB6.5  how they are implemented and monitored. of Customer
HICHEZERRERMWENR  UWREEANTRER A - Privacy
6.1.3 FREMRE
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IBHE B —REERBRERER KRB

ASPECT BT: General disclosure 3.1 Integrity:

ANTI-CORRUPTION Information on: Honesty and

EEB7 : RES (a) the policies; and Trustworthiness
31 WEHETE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

~BRE

B LER BR BRFERAREN !

(@) BX; &

(b) BFHETABEARENERERRRANER -

KPI B7.1
RASEARANIE1RB7 .1

KPI B7.2
RRSEARANIE1RBT .2

KPI B7.3
RS ARANIERBT.3

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERANHETANHESRETEBENESRAEHN
YERSRER

Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored

B ERERBERER  URERRTREER Ao

Description of the anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.
HEMESREETIRENRESE -
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3.1

3.1

3.1

3.1.2

3.1.2

Integrity:
Honesty and
Trustworthiness

#AE BETE

Integrity:
Honesty and
Trustworthiness

#AE BETE

Training on
Integrity
BRI
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IBHE B —REERBRERER KRB
Community
#HE
ASPECT B8: General disclosure 6.4 Win-win:
COMMUNITY Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities Actively
INVESTMENT where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the Fulfilling Social
BEBS : HEIRE communities’ interests Responsibility
—REE 6.4 HE:@BEBES
BRLMEL2HR T REEMIHRRENRREER DL BHER RNEE HEET
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education, environmental 6.4  Win-win:
RSB NMIS1ZB8.1  concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sports). Actively
EIEREE MBS BREE S IEK RE X B Fulfiling Social
B) o Responsibility
6.4 HiF:BEET
HEER
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time) to the focus area. 6.4 Win-win:
MRENIEER2 TAEIXREMBHAER (MERIFR) - Actively
Fulfilling Social

Responsibility
6.4 &K BBESD
HEER
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Directors’ Report

EFOHRS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands and its registered office address is
3-212 Governors Square, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue, P.O.
Box 30746, Seven Mile Beach, Grand Cayman KY1-1203,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company, and
the Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacture and sale of
automotive interior decorative components and parts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, investment and financial
activities, including a fair review of the business using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business as well
as environmental policies and performance, as required by
Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance, is shown in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 7 to 14 and in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 41 to 99 of this
annual report.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY
Description of possible risks and uncertainties facing the
Company is set out in note 24 to the financial statements in
this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue from the Group’s largest
and five largest customers for the year ended 31 December
2023 represented approximately 65.2% (31 December
2022: 57.3%) and 94.7% (31 December 2022: 97.1%),
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue from sales
operations.

The aggregate amount of purchases from the Group’s
largest and five largest suppliers for the year ended 31
December 2023 represented approximately 10.5% (31
December 2022: 18.7%) and 32.9%, respectively (31
December 2022: 48.7%).

So far as is known to our Directors, none of our Directors,
their respective close associates or our Shareholders
who are interested in more than 5% of the issued share
capital of our Company has any interests in the five largest
customers or the five largest suppliers of our Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable
development in the long term, continuously create
value for its employees and customers, and foster good
relationships with its suppliers. The Group understands
that employees are its valuable assets, and the realization
and enhancement of employees’ values will facilitate the
achievement of the Group’s overall goals. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group provided generous
social security benefits to its employees to motivate
them while heightening their sense of belonging. The
Group also understands the importance of maintaining
good relationships with its suppliers and customers to
the overall development of the Group. The Group places
emphasis on supplier selection and encourages fair and
open competition to foster long-term relationships with
quality suppliers on the basis of mutual trust. To maintain
the competitiveness of its brand and products, the Group
abides by the principles of honesty and trustworthiness and
commits itself to consistently provide quality products to
establish a reliable service environment for its customers.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no
significant and material dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

Directors’ Report
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B E2023F 1283 1HIEFEE  REBAXREER
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HE2023F12831HLELEE BEAEEER
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 4 of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is committed to contributing to the
sustainability of the environment and aims to become
an environmentally-friendly corporation that pays close
attention to conserving natural resources. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact by conserving electricity
and water and encouraging the recycling of office supplies
and other materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, as far as the
Company is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and note 17 to the financial statements in this annual
report.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in properties, plants and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note
11 to the financial statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to RMB227.9 million.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between
meeting shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable dividend policy. The
Company’s dividend policy aims to allow shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future development. When
considering the dividend payment, the Board shall take
into account the factors including but not limited to the
Company’s operations and earnings, capital requirements
and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions, capital expenditure and future development
requirements, shareholders’ interests and other factors that
the Board considers relevant.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report, neither our Company, nor its
subsidiaries have purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Directors’ Report
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SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the directors of the Company,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules at any time up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles of Association, every Director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profit of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officer’s liability coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Yunhua (Resigned on 19 April 2024)

Ms. Zhang Jingrong (Appointed on 19 April 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Chen Geng

Ms. Zhang Jingrong has obtained the legal advice referred
to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 18 April 2024, and
confirmed that she understood her obligations as a director
of a listed issuer.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15
to 21 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company for a term of three years unless
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice in writing to the other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company for a
term of three years unless terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes
16.1 and 16.2 of Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules) has
been entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 20283.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2
and 15.3 of Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules) which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 20283.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
an entity connected with him/her or Controlling Shareholder
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as to the service contracts with the Directors, no
contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors of the
Company and five highest paid individuals of the Company
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements
in this annual report. The emoluments of the Directors
is determined by reference to the relevant Directors’
experience, responsibility, workload and the time devoted
to our Group.

SHARE SCHEMES

The Group has not adopted any share schemes (as defined
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules) between the Listing
Date and the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

None of our Directors and their respective close associates
are interested in any business which competes or is likely
to compete with that of our Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of corporate governance practice adopted by
the Company are set out in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests or short
positions of each of our Directors and chief executive
of our Company in our Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of our Company and our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which, were required to be notified
to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions in which any of them was taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(@) Interest in our Company

Name of Director Nature of interest

Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

ESRESITHRAESRRKRG - HERKREG
REEENEDZRXE

REFEHRBH RPAESREAQATETETH
ANEZBRARKERE LB (TXRE
ERBEBERAEXVE) BIRH ~ HEE R D
BEETEERBESR(ESRBEREM)
(BB EREES71E) (TSFO) EXVELE7
RESHBANG AR RN ERR
KB (BERESHRBEEEANEXEN
WEWEEAREEBNEZARAE) AR
BEE R EEGFEI521F B0 A L IEFr it
WELMPERBEBREZETHENTEARQT
RO ESZRXEBOT

(a) MEATWED

Number of
Shares Percentage of
(Note 1) shareholding

EEHY HEHEEE e 8 (MsE1) T =g

Mr. Hou Jianli Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)

FEENSE Fo@#qD  REGEE#ER (MYsE2)

Notes: M 5E

1. The letter “L” denotes our Directors’ long position (as defined 1. FRILIIERMESENZEROTNERE (EER

under Part XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Mr. Hou Jianli (“Mr. Hou”) is the spouse of Ms. Chen Bierui
(“Ms. Chen”). The entire issued share capital of H&C Group
Holding Limited is beneficially and legally owned as to 60%
and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen respectively. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by H&C Group
Holding Limited.

58 75 S R B IR B SEXVER) ©

2. BEEF (&ELE) REBBRBR (REZL)) X
+HIEC 1B o H&C Group Holding LimitedRy % f
E’%‘éfﬁHQZISﬁE'JEEI@?EEEEZK%Q:!:‘*“EZA
EHEBG0% KR40% o RIFFE S KRB KRG &
FEKREZ TR ARHAC Group Holding
LimitedFr iSRRI B B (5 R A # o
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EFOHRS

(b) Interests in our associated corporations

(b) MBS EEE RS

Name of Name of associated Number of Shares Percentage
Director corporation Nature of interest (Note 1) of shareholding
By WHECEE AR BEME RHEE (M) EE DL
Mr. Hou H&C Group Holding Limited  Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%
spouse (Note 2)

ErE H&C Group Holding Limited EB#Z#EB A ; EL@Em (Hs2)

Notes: PR -

1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under Part 1. FHRILJIERZERMNETE (TEERESH K

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms.
Chen is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares
held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors or the chief executive of our
Company has any interests or short positions in our shares,
underlying shares or debentures of our Company and
our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions in which any of them was taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the persons or
corporations who has an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

FTERRNROVUEARGHEROE
mARRE

REFHERBH REZFRAEGHEHEXV
BE2RFEINDWARAERDREHAREE
SRAEIFRAEI6HFABFHECMATE
B T ALTEEZERARQF ARG AERE
RPPEENEDTIXENT

Name of Number of Shares Percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding
RS HaEtE RRHEE (M) HRESL
H&C Group Holding Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
Limited
EnEBA
Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)
BERE @R REGZEER (W& 2)
Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)
PR+ @R REGEZEER (W& 2)
Notes: B -
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under Part 1. ZFHRILIIERZERMNETE (TEEREH K

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms.
Chen is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares
held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, the directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

B 1&BIEEXVER) o

2. EEREABBRLZLTHNERE-H&C Group Holding
Limited Y 2 20 B 8517 8% & 93 B HH 1 50 4 M BR
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 or the
period following 31 December 2023 up to the date of this
annual report, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or holding company or any of the subsidiaries of the
Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors and chief executive, or their spouse and children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during such period.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the PRC local government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC, and operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars of
these retirement plans are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 20283, which did not
constitute connected transactions under chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, are set out in note 26 of the financial
statements in this annual report.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company has received the written confirmation from
each of H&C Group Holding Limited, Mr. Hou Jianli,
Ms. Chen Bierui (the “Covenantors”) in respect of the
compliance with the terms of the non-compete undertaking
(the “Non-compete Undertaking”), entered into between
the Covenantors and the Company as set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders
— Non-Competition Undertakings From Our Controlling
Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated 31
December 2018. Each of the Covenantors has confirmed
and declared that he/she/it had strictly complied with the
Non-compete Undertaking without any breach thereof. All
the Independent Non-executive Directors had reviewed the
matters relating to the enforcement of the Non-compete
Undertaking and consider that the terms of the Non-
compete Undertaking have been complied with by each of
the Covenantors for the year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITORS

The Company appointed KPMG as auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. There
was no change in the Company‘s auditors in the past three
years.

On behalf of the Board

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
Hou Jianli

Chairman

Xi’an, the PRC, 28 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
L% ER S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., Ltd
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 121 to 212, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes, comprising
material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

BWILZAEMER S

FMEEFEE
HREBFFTEESRBERMANEXAE B
HEHMGRaBRENBEFIRAEENS
R-ZEZREERMBFAERGEHHR
XKML ERRBETREN -HMAFAEHE
EERRHEBNER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters.

B REFEREERRER

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

2(h)(i) and 2(k).

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

R iE S IR AL 147124 (a) % Mt 522(h) (i) F12(k) B9 & 51 B 7 ©

The Key Audit Matter
FREER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BT EHM AR R

At 31 December 2023, the Group had a significant
balance of gross trade receivables which amounted
to RMB127,937,000, representing approximately
24.19% of the Group’s total assets at that date,
against which an allowance of RMB2,435,000 for
expected credit losses (ELCs) was recorded.
1R2023%F 128318 BHEENEZRUWHRIEREE
A ARM127,937,00000 1 EEERZBREE
IREEEA24.19% > MEx1S TBEAE B K(ELCs)%E
B AR #2,435,0007T °

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arose from
sales to heavy truck and passenger vehicle
manufacturers.
EEENEBEZRUABTIERBEL RERFAS
BliEmE e

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance
for trade receivables included the following:

T ETEACRHABEREEERANSEHEXNBREUT
£IF

o Obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimate of credit loss
allowances;

s THEKIHEEEHEEEZESN EHEWME
EFEEERMGSBARNBEEANSEENRS
B REFMML ;

° evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e ZRRTEHFENNER FHEEAEBRNER
BREFEE GBS ;
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BIZHMERS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESEIE @

BEERBRERRGEEHRERER

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

2(h)(i) and 2(k).

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

R S TR KM EE14/124(a) % B 522(h) ()12 (k)Y & 51 B0 7 ©

The Key Audit Matter
MRESFEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B FHEM AR

Management measures loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL of the trade receivables which
is based on ageing of the receivables and expected
loss rate for each category of trade receivables
grouped according to the shared credit risk
characteristics. The estimated loss rates take into
account the ageing of trade receivable balances, the
repayment history of the Group’s customers, current
market conditions, and forward-looking information.
Such assessment involves significant management
judgement and estimation.
EEERRURRNEDBRBERERBXRESS
BREER BUBRRNEBRBRRAEHABRAEER
BREKGHRIENRE U SARBERR BEEEHAR
RO MBEBREBAXRGH BHRBRAXNES
HAEBHERUBRREGRRE EETRNEMTE
SR SRR MAT LSS - RN EIRERNE
2 g A BRAD {51 o

We identified the ECL allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because
determining the level of loss allowance is inherently
subjective which requires significant management
judgement.
BEMREBRRNTBRERBAEGIEABARS
FEENREZ  BRERKENEEREALANT
BMIOr B XERE H o BT EE 5 R INRIEIR
REGBEBNSSEXCEATEE

° assessing whether items in the trade
receivables ageing report were categorised
in the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing a sample of individual items
with the underlying goods delivery notes,
sales invoices and other relevant underlying
documentation;

e BEHWMEBLEANEERHENEEE HE
BEMAEMAER X > sT AR ARTREREC RS
FNIEEERSESEMIRIRE DS ;

° assessing the appropriateness of
management’s estimates of ECL allowance
for trade receivables by examining the
information used by management to derive
such estimates, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data and
evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on latest
financial information of major customers,
current economic conditions and forward-
looking information; and

s BHREXEEEAUGERWIRZINIERER
BAREFEENEN SFNEELRDHEN
ERMNTLREEBAXEZEETERTIERTRHN
B AT B 75 B ~ 2 A AR AR O AN A B M R
TEERAE L EEELEHENSEY ;
)4

° re-performing the calculation of the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2023 based on
the Group’s credit loss allowance policies.

e REEENGHBREEREK EMAER
2023F 12831 BB KRERH o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BWILZAEMER S

RARESEIE @)

Timing of revenue recognition

U A B 5T s

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(r).

BEGR S B IREN 4R M aE2(r)B) & 51 B ©

The Key Audit Matter
R EtEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt FEM AR

Revenue from sales of automotive interior and
exterior decorative products is recognised when
products are delivered at the customers’ premises,
the customers take possession of and accept the
products, which is taken to be the point in time
when the Group transfers control over the products
to the customers.

EEVRERGHRN EREERBMNEDRS Al
WERT EEEFHERNEGHEETZER
B —E R B > 85 &S 88 R AMEm 1 BE a2 WA 5
AR

We identified the timing of revenue recognition
as a key audit matter because revenue is a key
performance indicator of the Group which increases
the risk that the timing of revenue recognition may
be manipulated to meet financial expectations or
targets.

BN RAEDSEABARBESSZE BRAKA
7 BEEE-ENRRRIFER EMBATERR
EUERY RTERS B R AR -

Qur audit procedures to assess the timing of
recognition of revenue included the following:
HTEWRARIFLEEARANEFEXNSEATE
15 :

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls in relation to revenue recognition;

e THRRMLEIEEEKAERS B RN
BRI s B REERUE

° inspecting customer contracts, on a sample
basis, to identify terms and conditions relating
to goods acceptance and assessing the
Group’s revenue recognition policies with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

e HEBREXPNGHN UHNABYROAE
RARV IR R R R AR BRIRIT st ERIMRE
FfE SEERNBARERRRE ;

° comparing, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before
and after the financial year end date with
underlying documentation, which included
goods acceptance notes, to assess
whether the revenue had been recognised
in accordance with the terms of the sales
contracts and in the appropriate financial
periods;

e REEARZE ERNURFEELAEHAEBR
RHETWARZ EERXE (BIEEYE IR
B) UFTHBRARTSEREBEHESQKERRN
BE P EAE R
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BT iR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESEIE @

Timing of revenue recognition

W A B 5T s

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(r).

B &R IR 54K I 5 2(r) B9 & 51 I 5 ©
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Bt EE Bt BRI AR R

inspecting underlying documentation for
manual journal entries relating to revenue
which were recorded during the year and
which met other specific risk-based criteria;
and

1% B8 B AF O B 1S I A AE R e R & HLAth A4S TE AL R
BENFIEst 0B H ; &

obtaining external confirmation of, on a
sample basis, transaction amounts for the
year and debtor balances as at the financial
year end directly with customers.
RREARE BEREATFERNFERZ 8
MBERBRFEERE 5 EURIBREN A F
B8 o

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON (Continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

BWILZAEMER S

MEMBERERRZBABRSUMNEY

(#&)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BT iR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

BWILZAEMER S

BB GEMBRRAENTE

HESRAFBEKEEAERNGE
MEH SR - RIFPTEINR TS RE
BEERCFEAFZTHEABRABNE
ARABEME RMAEERY S5HE
WREEKEENELEEARE - NRK
PRBREEEATRESE  AALER
ZEMBEETREFEREIEGRANY
HBREAPHABRE - REABOKE
TROBMIZMEEZERFEREBRR -
BN EmeERNBEZHMKRESH
HIEFTERSHES RE - AN AR FE
ENERAIEER ESEEITERFE

TEBREMBRENBEZIN AN A
BNRES BREEE UREGEEMBR
EEAARBRTZMEIR-

MEERRNERNEFT TINMBSA
MENTE - BENEFRE UEY
HREMBRERERER - RMEEEE
EESHNEE BEENAT - RMASE
SARRAEEHEE-

REMEREN RMEAEREETEBET
STENESHLE KB EABFHER
FoUBEAMESFT AR L AILEEZNT
] B K EAG ©

ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2023

119



Independent Auditor’s Report
BT iR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EelEER

For The year ended 31 December 2023 &, £2023F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”) (WX A EE B 51/ 7)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARBTT ARBETT

Revenue ' 9N 4 245,833 176,094
Cost of sales SHERA (198,714) (163,419)
Gross profit EH 4(b) 47,119 12,675
Other income EH AU 5 4,101 3,000
Selling and distribution expenses HEEA (2,764) (8,774)
Administrative expenses THREX (35,558) (33,096)
Impairment losses (provided)/reversed on B 5 EUWER (5H12) /E (g

trade and other receivables DEREN S| 24(a) (231) 60
Profit/(loss) from operations reEHEN (F518) 12,667 (21,135)
Finance costs B 75 AR 25 6(a) (9,351) (9,198)
Profit/(loss) before taxation PRI ETEF] (B518) 6 3,316 (30,3383)
Income tax FriSiR 7(a) 430 4,323

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity A E EEREEIEEN
shareholders of the Company for &%~ (&518)

the year 3,746 (26,010)
Earnings/(loss) per share SREMN  (E5B)
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) BEARR#E (ARES) 10 0.19 (1.30)

The notes on pages 129 to 212 form part of these S 129F212B MBI A FEREKRA —
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity — &F 49 o FEF F 74 A 5] #E 25 BS 58 FE 15 & 9 E A7)
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for 2 BRI E&H N KM s£23(C) e

the year are set out in Note 23(c).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FeRmRkHEMEERKRE R

For The year ended 31 December 2023 &, £2023F 12831 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (X A B #5851 7T7)

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT

Profit/(loss) for the year FEpiad S (B5i8) 3,746 (26,010)

Other comprehensive income for the year E£RHEMESEUAN

(after tax): (30T IER) :
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to AEERERENNDEE
profit or loss: BH@mHIEE :
- Exchange differences on translation into —ERRERET
presentation currency of the Group ERNERELE 134 904

Total comprehensive income attributable to 23 5] %5 i3 31 FE(L PN
equity shareholders of the Company for SmBUAN

the year

3,880 (25,106)

The notes on pages 129 to 212 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBI AR

At 31 December 2023 &, 22023412531 H
(Expressed in RMB) (M A & ¥ 51/ 7T)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARBTT ARBETT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LENE e L 11 164,989 195,240
Intangible assets B EE 1,198 1,541
Prepayments for acquisitions of BEVME BERREZ

property, plant and equipment AAIE 15(a) 9,443 8,794
Deferred tax assets IRERIEE E 21(b) 7,521 6,384
______________________________________________________________ 183,151 = 211,959
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =7E 13 60,607 53,193
Trade and bills receivables B REWEIEN EWERE 14 167,045 125,300
Prepayments and other receivables T8 I8 M E Ath fE U 7 1B 15(b) 25,527 21,091
Cash at bank and on hand WITNFHEIRE 16 92,603 106,491
______________________________________________________________ 345,782 306,075 _
Current liabilities mENAE
Bank and other loans BT REMER 17 87,286 113,675
Trade and bills payables B 5 e I8 K T 2= i% 18 141,437 97,805
Accrued expenses and other payables FEstBI S & E &S 7B 19 33,542 43,290
Lease liabilities HESE 20 1,395 539
Current taxation BPHERTR 18 21(a) 1,251 560
______________________________________________________________ 264,911 265,869
Netcurrentassets = #BAEEF®H 80,871 __ 50,206
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERREAE 264,022 262,165

The notes on pages 129 to 212 form part of these financial 5 129F 2128 2 M sE B A B R K —
statements. BB 53 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBKRER

At 31 December 2023 ;2023512831 H
(Expressed in RMB) (X A B #5851 7T7)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5% AREF T AEET T
Non-current liabilities ERBERF
Bank and other loans WITREMER 17 14,803 16,806
Lease liabilities HEas 20 715 -
Deferred income TEFE U 22 3,058 3,793
_______________________________________________________________ 18,576 20,599
NET ASSETS BEFE 245,446 241,566
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRI E 23
Share capital i 17,522 17,522
Reserves H#E 227,924 224,044
TOTAL EQUITY iR 245,446 241,566

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZEEGR2024FE3F 28 ETBESETT o

directors on 28 March 2024.

Hou Jianli Xu Yunhua
=ER FEE
Chairman Director
= EF

FI120F212B 2 EB AT HEHRETN—
53 o

The notes on pages 129 to 212 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SAEmEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & £2023F 12831 H L FE

(Expressed in RMB) (M A & ¥ 51/ 7T)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FAAREREEL
Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R R EE Rttt EERE ER REBER L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTR AEETT AEETFT ARETT ARETTR AEETT AEETT
(Note 23(b)) ~ (Note 23(d)())  (Note 23(d)(ii))  (Note 23(d)(iii))  (Note 23(d)(iv))
(Wafosb)  (MEE23(d)i)  (WaEad(a)i))  (RsE2s()i)  (HtsE28(d)iv)
Balance at 1 January 2023 F*2023%181H 17,522 96,854 (17,500) 25,784 1,297 117,609 241,566
Changes in equity for £ Z2023F128318 1t
the year ended EEZEGED.
31 December 2023:
Profit for the year FRiEF - - - - - 3,746 3,746
Other comprehensive EREHZAUA
income for the year - - - - 134 - 134
Total comprehensive income  £RZEAKA
for the year - - - - 134 3,746 3,880
Appropriation to reserve  AREEE - - - 1,000 - (1,000) -
- - - 1,000 134 2,746 3,880
Balance at 120235125318
31 December 2023 17,522 96,854 (17,500) 26,784 1,431 120,355 245,446

The notes on pages 129 to 212 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEEHDEIR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & F£2023F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in RMB) (X A B #5851 7T7)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARATRERREL
Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
e RIFEE Akt EEfE ERfE REEH 4y
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR AREFR AEETR AEETR AEETR AREFR AREFR
(Note 23(b))  (Note 23(d)(i))  (Note 23(d)(ii))  (Note 23(d)(ii})  (Note 23(d)(iv))
(Ws3(b))  (WsE23(d)i)  (WsE23(d)i))  (MFE2s(d)ii)  (KHsE23(d)(iv)

Balance at 1 January 2022 120221518 17,622 96,854 (17,500) 25,784 393 143,619 266,672

Changes in equity for ~ £X2022F125318 1

the year ended 31 EEZEGED.

December 2022:
Loss for the year ENFE - - - = = (26,010) (26,010)
Other comprehensive income EREMLENA

for the year - - - - 904 - 904

Total comprehensive income  £R2EENA
for the year - - - - 904 (26,010) (25,106)

Balance at 31 December  1%2022&12H318
2022 17,522 96,854 (17,500) 25,784 1,297 117,609 241,566

The notes on pages 129 to 212 form part of these financial 5 129F212B 2 M sE B A R K —
statements. BB 53 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= A, hy =g —1
l%l\ = | iﬂﬁl}llgﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, £2023F 12831 HHNEE
(Expressed in RMB) (W A B #3/ 7)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARBTT ARBETT

Operating activities RETEE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BriEEA S (EB8) 3,316 (30,333)
Adjustments for: MU TEZBEBEHAE :
Depreciation and amortisation T E i iH 6(c) 34,042 33,583
Impairment loss on property, plant and MEBREMEE
equipment EAEE-ES - 222
Net (profit)/loss on disposal of property, HEME WE K
plant and equipment S (m) 1B IFEE 5 (154) 320
Net loss on disposal of a subsidiary REFNEIEIE 5 9 =
Finance costs ZUR 1N 6(a) 9,351 9,198
Interest income ) BN B (265) (326)
Amortisation of deferred income E FE T\ 4 25 22 (735) (636)
Changes in working capital: EEETET .
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =& Ggm R (7,414) 7,031
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 e W IE K e W EE ik
bills receivables (gm R (41,745) 40,830
Decrease in prepayments and T 15 0 I8 B H fih & U 7R I8
other receivables yEEAN 1,730 7,187
Decrease in restricted bank deposits = PR &l 2R 17 &F 7R D 2,868 10,316
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B ENRIEBERENERE
bills payables ®m, Gl 43,632 (34,057)
Decrease in accrued expenses FE ST B2 e Hfh & {9 7R I8
and other payables P 2,680 9,610
Cash generated from operations &= FRBRE 47,315 52,945
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B BEIFF1EH 21(a) (16) 2,801
Net cash generated from RETHABREREE
operating activites 47,299 55746
Investing activities KEEDH
Payments for purchase of property, plant BB ¥ -HE -REX
and equipment and intangible assets BEBEEZNMN (21,422) (28,691)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BMERZEZ
plant and equipment FrigsnIE 1,405 =
Government grants received BTN - 1,460
Interest received BUlF B 265 326

The notes on pages 129 to 212 form part of these financial 5 129F 2128 2 M sE B A B R K —
statements. BB 53 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & £2023F 12331 HMEE

(Expressed in RMB) (X A B #5851 7T7)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5E AREF T ARET T
Net cash used in REZBFMARES S
investing activities (19,752) (26,905)
Financing activities LB ES
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREMERMERIE 16(b) 90,650 97,500
Repayment of bank and other loans BERITREMER 16(b) (119,042) (100,853)
Interest paid EFHE 16(b) (9,296) (9,165)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HEaREAEENRE 16(b) (825) (339)
Interest element of lease rentals paid HEEGHNEEENRE 16(b) (55) (33)
Net cash used in MBEEEFTARE R
__financing activities . (38,568 (12,890)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERREEEY
and cash equivalents GRZb) /g miE%a (11,021) 15,951
Cash and cash equivalents FYNRERREEEY
at the beginning of the year 16(a) 78,495 62,538
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEEXRESHTE
changes 1 6
Cash and cash equivalents FEXRRENREEFEBY
at the end of the year 16(a) 67,475 78,495

The notes on pages 129 to 212 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B %5 3R | M 5

HE2023F12A31HIEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2017 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 15 January 2019. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of automotive
interior and exterior decorative components and
parts.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Material accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments
to IFRS Accounting Standards that are first
effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.

1
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B E R IHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 75 3R 2R P 5E

B ZE2023F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 & &t B & 5 » U B #E37T)

FTESZHHEK @

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 comprise the
Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRS Accounting Standards
that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
The Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the IASB to these financial statements
for the current accounting period:

° IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

° Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and
errors. Definition of accounting estimates

° Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making materiality
judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

° Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

° Amendments to |IAS 12, /ncome taxes:
International tax reform — Pillar Two model
rules

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the amended IFRS Accounting
Standards are discussed below:

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

IFRS 17, which replaces IFRS 4, sets out the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure requirements applicable to issuers of
insurance contracts. The standard does not have
a material impact on these financial statements
as the Group does not have contracts within the
scope of IFRS 17.
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2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates

The amendments provide further guidance on
the distinction between changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates.
The amendments do not have a material
impact on these financial statements as the
Group’s approach in distinguishing changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates is consistent with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making materiality judgements:
Disclosure of accounting policies

The amendments require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information and
provide guidance on applying the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosure.
The Group has revisited the accounting
policy information it has been disclosing and
considered it is consistent with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 12, /Income taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption such that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal
and offsetting temporary differences on initial
recognition such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. For leases and decommissioning
liabilities, the associated deferred tax assets
and liabilities are required to be recognised from
the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to retained earnings or other
components of equity at that date. For all other
transactions, the amendments are applied to
those transactions that occur after the beginning
of the earliest period presented.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction (Continued)

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not
apply the initial recognition exemption to lease
transactions and had recognised the related
deferred tax, except that the Group previously
determined the temporary difference arising from
a right-of-use asset and the related lease liability
on a net basis on the basis they arise from a
single transaction. Following the amendments,
the Group has determined the temporary
differences in relation to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. The change primarily
impacts disclosures of components of deferred
tax assets and liabilities in Note 21(b), but does
not impact the overall deferred tax balances
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the related deferred tax
balances qualify for offsetting under IAS 12.

Amendments to IAS 12, /Income taxes:
International tax reform - Pillar Two model
rules

The amendments introduce a temporary
mandatory exception from deferred tax
accounting for the income tax arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (“OECD”) (income tax arising
from such tax laws is hereafter referred to as
“Pillar Two income taxes”), including tax laws
that implement qualified domestic minimum
top-up taxes described in those rules. The
amendments also introduce disclosure
requirements about such tax including the
estimated tax exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes. The amendments are immediately
effective upon issuance and require retrospective
application.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control
ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for
foreign currency transaction gains or losses)
arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests (“NCI”) either at fair value or at the
NCl's proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets. NCI are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. NCI
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between NCI
and the equity shareholders of the Company.
Loans from holders of NCI and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance
with Notes 2(m) or 2(n) depending on the nature
of the liability.

134 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FREIXESE R HEIRAT

2

(d)

Bt B8 2 5]
MEBABIEAERERNNER-
EXAEEARNETE2SAEBREM
SzuZo®R  BAENEBH
HERZRAOFEZZOHRE
AlAEBENZER - WEAF
WHMBREBEZEGRRERABEBRE
HAGEMBRE BEEH &
RIEEBRIE-

EENEHR RZAREZR UK
EERARSEENEMRER
WAKRER > (FRINER S WK
BRI ERVGEEHUHRRE
HEBRHBE - EFRARZAEE
WAEBRBERIEEELHRBE
BENERTTFUHE-

HREBGH 2EEIEZEN
ARBENFERRKRRGLERY
BN FABRMRBFEEEBES
EFERRREm -EGHMB
MR EZRIFERR RS LT B
REBARAMBEEZ DRI K-
FEFEENGHEGMEMEK
Gl mix - UEoEMLIFERRK
RE@ - RFERRRREERMN
HMER&EH REEEEER
MEE2(m)si2(nNE/mEES R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B %5 3R | M 5

HE2023F12A31HIEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it derecognises the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other
components of equity. Any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interests
retained in that former subsidiary is measured at
fair value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)), unless
it is classified as held-for-sale.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)):

= right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest;

- buildings situated on leasehold properties;
and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see Note

2(g)).-

If significant parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major
components).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in
profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful
lives, and is generally recognised in profit or
loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Estimated
useful lives

Plant and buildings 10-40 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Moulds 4-5 years
Motor vehicles and other 5-10 years
equipment
Right-of-use assets:
— Land-use-right leased for Over the
own use unexpired term
of lease
— Plant and buildings Over the
unexpired term
of lease

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. Development
expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure
can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible,
future economic benefits are probable and the
Group intends to and has sufficient resources
to complete development and to use or sell
the resulting asset. Otherwise, it is recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. Capitalised
development expenditure is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
and have finite useful lives are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 2(h)

(if)).

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost
of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, if any, and is generally
recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Estimated
useful lives

Software 5 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.
This is the case if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for leases that have
a short lease term of 12 months or less,
and leases of low-value items. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value item, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. If not capitalised, the associated
lease payments are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is recognised using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the
lease liability, and are charged to profit or
loss as incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 2(e) and 2(h)(ii)).

Refundable rental deposits are accounted
for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in non-equity
securities carried at amortised cost (see
Notes 2(r)(ii) and 2(h)(i)). Any excess of the
nominal value over the initial fair value of
the deposits is accounted for as additional
lease payments made and is included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

(9)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
if there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a lease modification, which
means a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract,
if such modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case, the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions
are rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and met the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group has taken advantage
of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers
the rent concessions occurred.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECL” s) on
financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
and trade and other receivables) and
contract assets.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Generally, credit losses
are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls between the
contractual and expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following rates if the
effect is material:

- trade and other receivables and
contract assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are the portion
of ECLs that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months);
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk
of a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when measuring ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment, that includes forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial instrument
to have low credit risk when its credit
risk rating is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of ‘investment grade’.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default being more than 90 days past
due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance
by the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise; or

144 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD R EIRIHAENEHHARAT

2 FEEZHHE ®
(h) EEGHEKREERE &)

(i)

KEEZMITRREHEENIG
EBE5R (1)
5B BB A IS8 (%)

FHREEEENRESRS B H
EEFHstE2 URBEmT
REERARBMNEEREH
RNy -BHACEEES
ENERNEHNIED RIS
MEWmAEIE e AEE
FREERM T AR RERT
HEE TEBEBEEAERK
HE/ T ANKREEFDHE
FEREE o

ETHEEEERE
REBRSBH AEEFMG
THEERTHREER
BE-EXECTHZTMEE
st REBE R EE M A
FEN-—BRNZEEMG
EMEETRIESHIRE
BEiRE -

THEEHREERENE
BEETIERSEMF

- BEBALBEEAMHR
Lo

— ZEXN LLMBHEBIEI
X

- FEBEFTEEZEOIED
EHAEBENERIR
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BA %5 3R = Bt 5E

HE2023F12A31HIEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

- it is probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in
the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets (inventories and other contract
costs, contract assets and deferred
tax assets) to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or cash-
generating units (“CGU"s).
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current
assets(Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or
GCU is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset
or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss. They are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the CGU
on a pro rata basis.

(i) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value as follows:

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see Note 2(i)(i)),
property, plant and equipment (see Note
2(e)) or intangible assets (see Note 2(f)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
e.g. sales commission, are capitalised if
the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Otherwise
costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not
capitalised as inventory, property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets, are
expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation of
capitalised contract costs is recognised in
profit or loss when the revenue to which the
asset relates is recognised (see Note 2(r)(i)).
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2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)]

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(r)(i)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the terms in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for ECLs (see Note 2(h)(i) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration becomes unconditional (see Note
2(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see Note 2(r)(i)). A contract liability is also
recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
In such latter cases, a corresponding receivable
is also recognised (see Note 2(k)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration
and only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost (see Note 2(h)(i)).
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and other
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL (see Note 2(h)

(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequently, these borrowings are stated
at amortised cost, using an effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with Note 2(t).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Short-term employee benefits are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are expensed
as the related service is provided.
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2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are expensed at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises costs for a
restructuring.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payable or receivable is
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax
arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

= temporary differences on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to investment
in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

- those related to the income taxes arising
from tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model
rules published by the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.
Future taxable profits are determined based
on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the
business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are
reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only
if certain criteria are met.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Generally provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

A provision for warranties is recognised when
the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a
weighting of possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
A provision for onerous contracts is measured
at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract, which is determined based on the
incremental costs of fulfilling the obligation under
that contract and an allocation of other costs
directly related to fulfilling that contract. Before
a provision is established, the Group recognises
any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount
of the provision.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Revenue and other income
Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue
on a gross basis, including the sale of
automotive interior and exterior decorative
components and parts that are sourced
externally. In determining whether the
Group acts as a principal or as an agent, it
considers whether it obtains control of the
products before they are transferred to the
customers. Control refers to the Group’s
ability to direct the use of and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits
from the products.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product is transferred to the customer at
the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value added
tax or other sales taxes.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(@)

Sale of automotive interior and exterior
decorative components and parts
Revenue is recognised when goods
are delivered at the customers’
premises, the customers take
possession of and accept the
products, which is taken to be the
point in time when the Group transfers
control over the products to the
customers. If the products are a
partial fulfilment of a contract covering
other goods, then the amount of
revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction
price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(il Revenue from other sources and other
income

(@)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method. The
“effective interest rate” is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset
to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. In calculating
interest income, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset
is not credit-impaired). However, for
financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts
to the gross basis.
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2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(il Revenue from other sources and other
income (Continued)
(b)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.

Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as other income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the respective functional currencies of
Group companies at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

®

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its
entirety or partially such that control is lost,
the cumulative amount in the exchange reserve
related to that foreign operation is reclassified
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal. On disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation that have been attributed
to the NCI shall be derecognised, but shall not
be reclassified to profit or loss. If the Group
disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but
retains control, then the relevant proportion of
the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:
() has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the
Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:
(i)  the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(viij a person identified in (a) (i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Sources of estimation uncertainty
Note 24 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment losses for non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a non-current asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
‘impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of non-current assets
as described in Note 2(h)(ii). These assets are
tested for impairment whenever the events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement
relating to the level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the recoverable amount of the assets and could
result in additional impairment charge or reversal
of impairment in future years.
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(Continued)
Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit loss allowance for trade receivables
Loss allowance for trade receivables is based
on assumptions about the expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
expected credit loss estimation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the result of the assessment and it may be
necessary to make additional impairment charge
to profit or loss.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values, if any. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values, if any, of the property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values, if any,
are based on historical experience with similar
assets after taking into account the anticipated
changes on how such assets are to be deployed
in the future. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARSDEIRS
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The Group is principally engaged in the AEBFER S SEANELENRT
manufacture and sale of automotive interior BHNERHEE FRAERE
and exterior decorative components and parts. BEBENE—TFHEBRHE4L(D)
Further details regarding the Group’s principal o

activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RIZERHEEREHNZERAS
customers by major products is as follows: SUWF
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBT T

Revenue from contracts with EEEMBREEA

customers within the scope of 1555 5 & Py

IFRS 15 BEEFEITSHZIAN
Disaggregated by major products: BRIEERHE:
— Sales of heavy trucks’ decorative —HEBL FEEMHS MG

components and parts 224,354 151,582
— Sales of passenger vehicles’ —HE TR B AL AR S AL 1

decorative components and parts 21,479 24,512

245,833 176,094

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with WL A HE SR EF BE A i T 15 0 4B
customers by the timing of revenue recognition HEREIT AN ZWA DR K
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes E4(b)(I) R4 (b)(iii)# & -

4(b)(i) and 4(b)(iii) respectively.
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(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

The Group’s customers with which transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue are
set out below:

Customer A EEA
Customer B ZEB
Customer C =ERC

(a)

WA (&)
AREBRZXZBBAERKA
10%MERLHIWT :
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
160,313 100,936
50,722 42,660
* 21,582

*

The revenue from relevant customer does not
account for 10% or more of the total revenue of
the Group during the corresponding year.

Details of concentration of credit risk rising from
the Group’s customers are set out in Note 24(a).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by products.
In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

- Heavy trucks’ decorative components and
parts: this segment includes primarily the
research, development, manufacture and
sale of decorative components and parts to
be installed in heavy trucks.

- Passenger vehicles’ decorative
components and parts: this segment
includes primarily the research,
development, manufacture and sale of
decorative components and parts to be
installed in passenger vehicles.

(b)
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WAERSBHRE @)

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHRSE (&)

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors
the results attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
and revenue generated by those segments
and direct expenses incurred by those
segments. The measure and revenue used
for reporting segment result is gross profit.
No inter-segment sales have occurred for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022. Assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

The Group’s other operating expenses,
including other loss/income, selling and
administration expenses and finance costs,
and assets and liabilities are not measured
under individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment assets and
liabilities nor information concerning capital
expenditure, interest income and interest
expenses is presented.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by the timing of revenue
recognition, as well as information
regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out
below.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARSWHRE @)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHRSE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () DEEE BEREE B
(Continued)

2023
Heavy Passenger
trucks’ vehicles’
decorative decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
BERKHE FHE
KENE A SCE &R 14 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR®BTT AR®BTT
Revenue recognised EHE— R
at a point in time from ZRBEEHE S
external customers Z A 224,354 21,479 245,833
Reportable segment A2, EEF]
gross profit 46,744 375 47,119
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 75 3R 2R P 5E

B E2023F12H31HLEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

4 WARSHBHS @

(b) AHW|WRSE (@)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () HDEEE BEREE B
(Continued)
2022
Heavy Passenger
trucks’ vehicles’
decorative decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
EERithy =] Fe A&
S Z B 14 5 B0 2 50 14 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Revenue recognised at TEE—RREER
a point in time from REIIBES
external customers ZWA 151,582 24,512 176,094
Reportable segment A2 EEF]
gross profit 11,122 1,553 12,675
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

B %5 3R | M 5

HE2023F12A31HIEEE

WARDEHERS (@

(b)

SERER & ()

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) BAIZE2#HFEBEm ZHER
profit or loss
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT
Total reportable segment gross A £ ¥§ ) %8 & 7l 42 2B
profit 47,119 12,675
Other income =R PN 4,101 3,000
Selling and distribution expenses H & & (2,764) (8,774)
Administrative expenses THRX (35,558) (33,096)
Impairment losses B Z R (5H1R) /&[0
(provided)/reversed on trade BEEE
and other receivables (231) 60
Finance costs BF 75 AR AN (9,351) (9,198)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before 4: &R aTEF (B8)
taxation 3,316 (30,333)
(iij) Geographic information (iii) 1 E

The Group’s revenue is substantially
generated from the sales of automotive
interior and exterior decorative components
and parts in the PRC. The Group’s
business is substantially conducted in the
PRC. Accordingly, no segment analysis
based on geographical locations of the
customers and assets is provided.

FEEBNBAZTEZREN S
B 85 & ) B 79 S BD %% A = 5B
- AEBZEBTEMURN
Rt WEEMHIRER
REENMBMUEETHND
B AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M 53R | M5

B ZE2023F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 & &t B & 5 » U B #E37T)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 HitlgA
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AERETF T

Government grants (including amortisation EFF##Bh (B #EkHizE224

of deferred income in Note 22) A E Ui 25 B9 5 ) 3,112 2,783
Net gain on sales of scrap materials HEREREBRMERZ
W F A8 571 336
Interest income F 2 WA 265 326
Net profit/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME BENMZBEZ
plant and equipment W~ (JBK) FEE 154 (320)
Net loss on disposal of a subsidiary BRETARNZFEHE (9) -
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) ERUWE " (B518) F48 8 (125)
4,101 3,000
6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6 MBEIREF . (FE8)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after BRI A mEF S (E538) IR0 (5
charging/(crediting): AN UTFTEERZEE
(a) Finance costs (a) BAFEE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBT T

Interests on bank and other loans WITREMERFE 9,296 9,165
Interest on lease liabilities HESEMNS 55 33

9,351 9,198
No borrowing costs have been capitalised during B E2023F12H31HIEFE > #
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB mERKAEERIL (20224F
Nil). ANREZTT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B %5 3R | M 5

B E2023F12831HIEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 PEBAIEF S (BE) @
(b) Staff costs* (b) ETIRi7*

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREBETFIT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e - TEREMBEN 36,625 38,980
Contributions to defined contribution F & {20 3R & 5t 2 =X

retirement plan 3,140 2,793

39,765 41,773

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong)
participate in the defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the local government
authority, whereby the subsidiaries are required
to contribute to the scheme at a rate of 16% of
the employees’ basic salaries. Employees of the
subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits,
calculated based on a percentage of the average
salaries level in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong),
from the above-mentioned retirement plan at
their normal retirement age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”) 30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no further material obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond the
above contributions.

FERRPR (FEEEB) I
BNERABSNEESZ2MEE MK
FFERFIE AR EH KR AKER
SECBIE ZFEMEBRASERE
EE KR EH16%MA 5t 8 /F H it
Mo EMBLRrENEEETEE
HEFRARFRFAEEZTE LK
BAEZDPE (FTREFTA) ¥
HHEBKE-—EBDLEFENE
B o

AEBERBEEERFME QAR
BEASERBEETBEREEDOE
BzEERILBG M QREEE
(TreEE5t8 ) - BB 8 A
IS5t AN B EE R MBI
BoRiERBEEstd BERHERE
EXEBEREEEHEBKRAZS%M
SEIHER  BEREEARAZ LR
7 A 130,000 ° 5t &l Z i & AL
B B B o

Br LA RS AE B MRS A
HBRAEBANEMERTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M 53R | M5

B E2023F12H31HLEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 MWReEH (HE) @
(c) Other items (c) HhiaHg
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Amortisation® 2 8y 444 415
Depreciation charge® (Note 11) EZH (YsE11)
— owned property, plant and —BEEME -BRERHE

equipment 32,433 32,393
— right-of-use assets —FREEE 1,165 775

34,042 33,5838

Impairment losses on non-financial ~ FE&RLE ERERKL

assets
- property, plant and equipment — W R E KRR

(Note 11(a)) (B E11) - 222
Auditors’ remuneration Z S M B &
- audit service — BT AR 2,100 1,800
Research and development costs Bt 2% B 2 12,608 12,151
Cost of inventories” (Note 13(b)) e A (fizE13(b)) 198,714 163,419

s Cost of inventories includes RMB49,055.000
(2022: RMB49,675,000) relating to staff costs, and
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which
amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in Note
6(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B %5 3R | M 5

B E2023F12831HIEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #&oEEFXAMNERER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEETERANMIEE .
profit or loss represents:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T

Current taxation (Note 21(a)): BNHEAFR I (MizE21(a)) :
Froysion tier ine yeer 0L AR L 707 _ .
Deferred taxation (Note 21(b)): IEERIE (FisE21(b)) :
— Origination and reversal of —HFERNES &[G
temporary differences (1,137) (4,323)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M 53R | M5

B ZE2023F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 & &t B & 5 » U B #E37T)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #8BEZXRANFRER @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense (b) REAREABTZERRIERZH
and accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax FitiEM ZHER -
rates:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBT T

Profit/(loss) before taxation priETRA S (B518) 3,316 (80,333)
Expected tax on profit/(loss) before BERARERREERE R Z

taxation, calculated at the rates MEFEZFRERMNZ

applicable to profits in the jurisdictions TEHAFR I (B EE() « (i) Az (iii))

concerned (Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) 829 (7,361)
Tax effect of non-deductible items AANRBEBEZMIBELE 1,631 7
Tax effect on preferential tax rate BEREZRNBEXE

(Notes (iv) and (v)) (B sE(iv) « (v)) 230 4,612
Tax effect on bonus deduction of HifER Az MetifiNz

research and development costs RIERZ (5% (Vi)

(Note (vi)) (3,135) (1,983)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KRR BIEILEFTSIR

recognised BEN 15 332
Income tax FRRIBERSZ (430) (4,323)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B %5 3R | M 5

HE2023F12A31HIEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between actual tax expense
and accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax

rates: (Continued)
Notes:

(i) The Company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the subsidiary of the Group incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules
and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

(if) The subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Hong
Kong is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: 16.5%). The entity did not have assessable
profits which is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB Nil).

(iliy ~ The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax rate at 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 25%).

(iv)  Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the tax bureaux
in 2021 that they are entitled to tax benefits
applicable to entities under the Third Phase of the
Western Region Development Plan of the PRC,
and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate Income
Tax rate of 156% for the calendar years from 2021
to 2030.

(v  The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law allows
enterprises to apply for certificate of “High and
New Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE”) which
entitles the qualified companies to a preferential
income tax rate of 15%, subject to fulfilment of
the recognition criteria. Xi’an Tianrui Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd. (“Xi’an Tianrui”), a subsidiary
of the Group, is qualified as a HNTE and the
qualification is valid for three years from 2022 to
2025.

(vij  According to the relevant tax rules in the PRC,
qualified research and development costs, are
allowed for bonus deduction for income tax
purpose, i.e. an additional 100% (2022: 100%) of
such expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses.

7 REHE@mRANRT/R @

(b) RERBREXAEZERREMSZHA
EstEM ZHER (@)

fe5E -

() TEHEHSEMRIZEABRE
EENEBRERES HBEXE
51) ML B AR BARE
HE BB R E R KRG SR
ERFIEHR

(i) B ZE2023F12831HILEFE &
EERERBAMAILIZMBEAR
BI16.5% 2 MELME BFBR
(20224 : 16.5%) o H E20234F
12B31BILEE  ZE AR HEE
EBEBMEBFERNERREF
(20224F : AR#EZ L) ©

(i) #E2023F12831H LFEE > k&
BERHE (REEEB) MILHHE
NE)BH25% 2 M E %
FT157R (20224 : 25%) ©

vy AERBETETEMIZNEAF
P01 ERTNEEEFERTEN
B ARESBERARPEAENK
FEstE S =T 2 ERZAMR
BR % WHR2021F E2030F EF
ER15% 2 BERPEHEEMSRR
%0

(v) (PEITEFRBIRE) RAFFERER
Flemmbz (TEMxid
XNBES LERSEREENE
REEMBNEKI% EANS
DRE-AEE-—HNBARTAZR
RIAERETAERAR (BEX
) NEsMkMEXER BR
B B2022F £2025F REA=
FEM-

Vi) REBPREBRUGETE ST
R 72 B] B {EFr 1S/ B B9 Z 0 51 18
0 BZE R MU%BSIM00% (2022
£ 1 100%) AJRIERIKINRESL o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 75 3R 2R P 5E

B ZE2023F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 & &t B & 5 » U B #E37T)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BESEQAIDKEAFAEISI(1)E KA T
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (FEEEMNZER) ROF2WIFE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information MNESHMOT :

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2023
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Directors’ fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total
HE BER
EE ik BUER REBEL RSN by
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

N ARBTR ARBFT ARBTR ARBFTR

Executive directors BES
Mr. Hou Jianli EERMRE 180 - 72 62 314
Mr. Xu Yunhua NEELE 30 - 122 27 179

Independent non-executive directors BIFHITES

Mr. Zhu Honggiang RLREE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Zhou Genshu BRE %L 80 - - - 80
Mr. Chen Geng R4 80 - - - 80

450 - 194 89 733
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B %5 3R | M 5

B E2023F12831HIEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EEM=Z w
2022
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Directors’ fees in-kind bonuses contributions Total
e bR
ek BNER RMETAL  RIEEER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T AEBTT ARBT T AEET T ARBT

Executive directors RTES
Mr. Hou Jianli RERLE 180 - 82 47 309
Ms. Hou Yuxi (resigned on BERAEXL (R20226F
7 November 2022) 11B7EEE) 150 - 102 12 264
Mr. Xu Yunhua (appointed on SEELE (R20226F
7 November 2022) 11A7HER) 30 - 21 5 56

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES

Mr. Zhu Honggiang RBEE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Zhou Genshu BRELE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Chen Geng R EE 80 - - - 80

600 = 205 64 869
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 75 3R 2R P 5E

B ZE2023F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 & &t B & 5 » U B #E37T)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 EBoiMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, At REFALTHFIRAEMSZ (2022
two (2022: three) are directors whose emoluments are F I ZR)EF HMEFBERER
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments eEge NiFERLBE > HEF =%
in respect of the other three (2022: two) individuals (2022%F : M%) AT B9 BN 4248 10
are as follows: T
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARBT T

Salaries and other emoluments FrEREMBE 540 630
Retirement scheme contributions BIRETEMER 69 64

609 694
The emoluments of the individuals who are not AEBREEEHFALTHRTLIEESEDN
directors and who are amongst the five highest paid ATHHFEMARUTEHEEAR :

individuals of the Group are within the following band:

2023 2022
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A#
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) Nil to THITE 1,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,000 3 2
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B %5 3R | M 5

B E2023F12831HIEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

10 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 10 SREHN 7 (B8)
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (a) ERELXEF  (EIE)

The calculation of basic earnings per share for B E2023F12831HIEFES
year ended 31 December 2023 is based on RaEABEANAG ZEKRER
the earnings attributable to equity shareholders REESRFN AR S, 746,000
of the Company of RMB3,746,000 (2022: TT(2022 - RElEERER K
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the RELEBEEAR®K26,010,000
Company of RMB26,010,000) and the weighted J0) BT EERK M E TS
average of 2,000,000,000 (2022: 2,000,000,000) 22,000,000,0008% (20224 :
ordinary shares. 2,000,000,0000%) st &R H -
The calculation of the weighted average number ZEROMEFHHFEUT

(b)

of ordinary shares are as follows:

2023 2022
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1851H%/7&&88 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary 12831 H 3 & 0 # F 198
shares at 31 December 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) SREBEREF  (F1E)
There were no dilutive potential shares B E2023F %2022F12831H
outstanding during the years ended 31 FFE - #SmBTEERMm-

December 2023 and 2022.
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M 53R | M5

HE2023F12A31HLLFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 NE-BERRE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHER
Land-use-right Motor vehicles
Plant and leased for  Machingry and and other ~ Gonstruction in
buildings 0Wn Use equipment Moulds equipment progress Total
EfrEAN
KERET  IHERE  BER%E BE HEREMRE FRIR 5

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
AeBTn  ARMTR  ARETn ARETm  ARETR ARBTR  ARETR

Cost: k.

At 1 January 2022 120221818 12,392 9,486 70,186 131,751 11,581 6,614 302,010
Additions HE 9% - 5,454 16,514 706 1,280 24,062
Transfer in{out] 8)/ (&) - - 17 6427 - (6.444) -
Disposals HeE - - - (210) (504) = (774)
At 31 December 2022 120224128318 7249 9,486 75,667 154,422 11,783 1,450 326,288
Accumulated depreciation: #ithE:

A1 denvary 2022 10151 (13874 oy @ %) 15680 - 97,089)
Charge for the year Epgih (2179 (206) [7.218) (21,99 (1571) - (33,168)
Impaiment loss HRE% - - - (22 - - (222)
Written back on disposals HERER - - - 248 183 - 431
A1 31 December 202 R R (15069 B B - (o
Carrying amount; REf:

At 31 December 2022 120226128318 56,437 8,662 43,674 80,302 4,716 1,450 195,240
Cost: k.

At 1 January 2023 1202351818 72490 9,486 75,657 154,422 11,783 1,450 325,288
Additions HE 2,451 - 81 2,070 1,211 3,542 10,055
Transfer in/out) &)/ (&) - - - 1,666 - (1,666) -
Disposals 3 - - 2,818) (9,326) 2,950) - (15,094
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 74,941 9,486 73,620 148,832 10,044 3,326 320,249
Accumulated depreciation: BithE:

At 1 January 2023 1202351818 (16,053) (824) (31,083) (74,120) (7,068) - (130,048)
Charge for the year ERTH (2,567) (206) (6,601) (22,310) (1,854) - (33,598)
Writen back on disposals HERER - - 1,109 5,695 1,562 - 8,386
At 31 December 2023 12023E 127318 (18,620) (1,030) (37,475) (90,795) (7,340) - _(15_5,2_60}_
Carrying amount: REf:

At 31 December 2023 120235128318 56,321 8,456 36,145 58,087 2,704 3,326 164,989
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B %5 3R | M 5

B E2023F12831HIEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 Y2 -BERHRE @

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FERHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use REHMEERNE D 2ERAESE
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: EREZFEDNTAOT :
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBT T

Land-use-right leased for own use FHE B A it (5 B A 8,456 8,662
Plant and buildings B K iEF 2,255 763
10,711 9,425
The analysis of expense items in relation to BN EmEINEERANESRER
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: DWW
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use  ZiEFAEEERE HH
assets by class of underlying asset: {FHEEEEFEXH :

Land-use-right leased for own use A E B A A 4 3th (65 FE A 206 206
Plant and buildings BB R i T 959 569
1,165 775

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) FE&EH 2 (MizE6(a)) 55 38
Expense relating to short-term leases GRS K HMAH EERIAY

and other leases M 51 23
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities EHRBHEEENIBEHES T2
are set out in Note 20. FoE2RMWE200
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M 53R | M5

B ZE2023F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 & &t B & 5 » U B #E37T)

12 RIBRARANKE
UTERBETEFETEREE A
ENERNWNEBARFE RIFS AR
HoFRFENRODENSEER-

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Percentage of ownership interest

FEREAR
Place and date of Particulars of The Group'’s
establishment/ registered/issued and effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiaries incorporation/operation  paid-up capital interest the Company a subsidiary  Principal activities
L/ ith/E¥ak FE£E
GG REHHRAH YREKHR BREZ ARAKE MERARE IEER
Baoji Qinrui Automotive Interiors ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of automotive interior
Co., Lid. (EBERREANE 24 July 2019 and exterior decorative components and
BRAE)" parts
BERRAENBEERAT A AR 20,000,0007 100% - 100% SERSMHRIHRERFE
2019%7524A
Xi'an Tianrui Automotive Interiors ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100% = 100%  Manufacture and sale of automotive interior
Co., Ltd. (BEXIRRERNAE 22 May 2009 and exterior decorative components and
BRAR) * parts
REXRSERHEERAT e AR 100,000,007 100% - 100% AERMEHEHHHEREE
200958228
Baoji Ruitong Automotive Interiors  The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% = 100%  Manufacture and sale of automotive interior
Co., Ltd. (BRRBESERHME 24 September 2020 and exterior decorative components and
BRAR) * parts
BERBENSERRAT e AR 20,000,007 100% - 100% SERMEHEHHHERHEE
2020598248
Xi'an Chuangzhiyun Technology The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% = 100%  The network and information security
Co., Ltd. 18 June 2021 software development and Information
(ARElZ ENKERAR)" system integration services
RZE ERRERAT e AR 1,000,007 100% - 100% BEEESZE HAEEER
20216818
Baoji Chengderuitai Supply Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  General transportation services
(BRATRFEREERAR) 23 June 2021
BENERREREARAT e AR 1,000,007 100% - 100%  E&HKH
2021565238
Hefei Ruihui Auto Parts Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% = 100%  Manufacture and sale of automotive interior
(GRRBSESHAERAE) 3 March 2028 and exterior decorative components and
parts
AlRESEENEERAA e AR 2,000,007 100% - 100% AERMEHERHRERHEE
2023E3A30
Ryford Holding Limited ** BvI United States Dollars 100% 100% Investment holding
5 May 2017 (USD’) 100,
100 shares of USD 1 each
Ryford Holding Limited ** ERELHE EnI00RERARIZTH 100% 100% - REER
2017£5R5H K
Tianrui International Holdings Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited ** 13 June 2017
RRARERARLT" i 1,000 %4 100% - 0% RERR
2017468134
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HE2023F12H31HILEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)
12 ﬁ"[‘ﬁ%’z}j N E (@)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The English translation of the name is for identification
only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese. This
entity is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
in the PRC.

*k

These companies are limited liability companies
incorporated outside of the PRC.

INVENTORIES
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

*k

13 &8

(a)

EREARBAR EXEEMHH
?J'J ZEERRTEEMBIIEEERE-

REARBETEENEBR IO R
AR o

]

TEMBRARPNEFEEELEUT
BIE:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AEBTT

Raw materials and consumables B K K& 5 #E 5 9,193 10,184
Work in progress E8 G 6,398 4,818
Finished goods Y &R 45,016 38,191

60,607 53,193

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:

(b)

EBEEAAXTFAGESEERN
FEEEIMWT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AEBTT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EtHEZ?‘CB’\JEEETE 198,849 163,284
Write down of inventories FEBEE (135) 185
198,714 163,419
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14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

14 BEZRBRERBRRRE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B S EWEIE (AR EE#H) 125,502 85,700
Bills receivables e R = i 41,543 39,600
167,045 125,300

All of the trade and bills receivables, net of loss
allowance for doubtful debts (if any), are expected to
be recovered within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis
At the end of reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on
the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition,
if earlier) and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

PREE S BWREREVRER (KR
BREE (MA)) Bt —FERIRE -

(a) ERESGD MR
RBREHAENRZEZAH (KA
B (WRF)) K30 Bk k538 #
ENEZREANEBERERZER
BomuwmT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T

Less than 3 months 31E B LN 137,323 94,438
3 to 6 months 3@ B =618 8 16,205 14,888
6 to 12 months 6B E12/@H 13,517 15,974

167,045 125,300

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables
are set out in Note 24(a).
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HE2023F12A31HIEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)
14 BEZRBRERBRRERE @

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Transfer of financial assets

The Group receives short-term bank acceptance
notes from its customers as a method of
settlement of goods sold. These notes entitle
the Group to receive the full face values from
the issuing banks upon the maturities of these
notes, which generally range from 3 to 6 months
from the dates of issuance.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had
discounted certain of the bank acceptance notes
and endorsed certain of the bank acceptance
notes to its suppliers and other creditors for
settlement of the Group’s trade and other
payables on a full recourse basis. Upon the
above discounting or endorsement, the Group
has derecognised the bills receivables in their
entity. These derecognised bank acceptance
notes have maturity dates of less than six
months from the end of the reporting period.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of these
notes and has discharged its obligation of the
payables to its suppliers and other creditors.
The Group assessed that the discounted and
endorsed bank acceptance notes were issued
by highly-rated issuing banks, the credit risks
were relatively insignificant and the Group was
not exposed to the relative interest risk. At 31
December 2023, the Group’s maximum exposure
to loss and undiscounted cash outflow should
the issuing banks fail to settle the bills on
maturity dates amounted to RMB96,267,000
(2022: RMB37,364,000).

(b)

HRTmEE
AEBBHZ R WEEHRRT K
TEERFSEERRN —EEE
BAE-ERERTAEEEF
URZERBEIHEKRIAZIR
THE2HBEE ZFEE—KE
MEHMBESSHAIMEE E6E
H o

R2023F12B31H  xEERE
FHROTAREZET TR I
mMEMEEREMEEASSSE
FTROAREE UEREE2EER
BEEEEAERNE ZENR
BREMEBEMRIE - FU LT
BRI BFER AEEBBEE2ITR
IERBEVRER ZEEWHKLL
BMEBNETARTEZNIHHS
REWRESFARBANEA o AR
BEERA LAEECHEBEZSE
EENFEENEBAIDER M
B3k a B 1T HHER KAt
BERANIREE e KEBTE
EHBEBAREEEZERTAREZH
ST ANBEERTET O EER
oSl o N =S v ST
BEFI = @ bR o 7¥2023F 12831
H> WHRAZERTHRIEHRES
BEERCAAEENRABLR
AUERBERAEREABRIEES A
R #96,267,0007T (20224 : A
R #37,364,0007T) °©
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

15 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 FEREREMEKRIE
(a) Prepayments for acquisitions of property, (a) BEVE - BERREWNFEMCIIE

plant and equipment

At 31 December 2023, the amount represents
prepayments for the Group’s contracted
procurement of moulds and machinery.

R2023F12B31HMRIBEEKAE
BT UG BEREENIKBEMNTE
g /=

(b) Prepayments and other receivables (b) FE{FFRIE K E fthFE U =R I8

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF ARETT

Advances to staff BE TR 659 1,086
Receivables for disposal of property, EWEEWE. KEX

plant and equipment HERIE 6,166 -

Others Hth 562 956

Financial assets measured at BB HEB AT ENERMEE

amortised cost 7,387 2,042
Prepayments for purchase of raw REREMENTENRIE

materials 13,661 15,912

Other miscellaneous prepayments HMtEIEENR 3,378 2,942

Value-added tax to be deducted FIRNLER 1,101 195

18,140 19,049

25,527 21,091

All of the above prepayments and other
receivables as at 31 December 2023 are
expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(@) Cash at bank and on hand comprise:

ROTRFEREUREMRERE

RITRFEREEE -
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARET T

Cash at bank and on hand RITAFHEREE 67,475 78,495
Restricted bank deposits (Note (i) ZREIRITER (HEE) 25,128 27,996
Cash at bank and on hand in RERE M BRI RVIRIT R

the consolidated statement of FHERE

financial position 92,603 106,491
Less: restricted bank deposits B ZREIRITER BIEE®)

(Note (i) (25,128) (27,996)
Cash and cash equivalents in the RiFrERERERNEER

consolidated cash flow statement BEEEY 67,475 78,495

The Group’s operation in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong SAR) conducted its business in
RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong SAR) is subject to the
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

Note:

(i) At the end of the reporting period, bank deposits
are pledged as guarantees for bank acceptance
bills issued by the Group and the bank loans.

FEERGE (FEBRFHNITHE
PROM) RENEBUAREER -
ARBILIFFTEHRBRER &
ETELRE (FBRHITHRER
) ZE % o B BT B AN BY Sb BE BR
il o

B 5% -

() HREPRBOTERRIRIRESE
EEBTZRITARERMNER
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16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 ﬁEﬁ&%EﬁEiﬁﬁu&Eﬂﬂiﬁﬁzﬁé

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) B (4

(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising (b) nﬂﬁ%iﬁéiﬂﬁﬁé&ﬁﬁﬂ’] )|
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRENMAEERETHMEE
assets and liabilities from financing activities, EMBENEE OFERERIE
including both cash and non-cash changes. Hes@gsH MEEHMESAEETD
Liabilities arising from financing activities are HERBHARKREEREF N X
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future EENGEERERERTDES
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s METHMERERENEGE

consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows
from financing activities.

Liabilities
aff
Bank and Interest Lease
other loans payable liabilities Total
RITR
HitER FEfFIS HEaR M

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR

(Note 17) (Note 20)
(M3£17) (I5£20)
At 1 January 2023 202351510 130,481 - 539 131,020
Changes from financing cash flows: HERERELS
Proceeds from bank and other loans ROLEMERFEIE 90,650 - - 90,650
Repayment of bank and other loans T“dﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬁﬁ (119,042) - - (119,042)
Capital element of lease rentals paid A& &E BERBEFE - - (825) (825)
Interest element of lease rentals paid %ﬁ,\ 5 BRI SEEHNE - - (55) (55)
Interest paid BHHE - (9,296) - (9,296)
Total changes from financing cash flows HERERELHAR (28,392) (0,20) (880) (38,568
Other changes: Hiti2% .
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BB (1556(a)) - 9,296 55 9,351
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into EmpnBREsE
new leases during the period - - 2,396 2,396
Total other changes Hithsz 48 %8 - 9296 ¢ 2451 11,747
At 31 December 2023 1#2023E12H31H 102,089 - 2,110 104,199
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16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising

16 RTRFEREUREMBEERE

'8 @

(b) METHEENEERERENES

from financing activities (Continued) (&)
Liabilities
&
Bank and Interest Lease
other loans payable liabilities Total
Rk
HitER 7S fHEafE H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR ARBTR ARETRT ARETR
(Note 17) (Note 20)
(Ft17) (It20)
At 1 January 2022 #2022%1R1H 133,834 - 878 134,712
Changes from financing cash flows: MERETEED .
Proceeds from bank and other loans BOREMERFEHE 97,500 - - 97,500
Repayment of bank and other loans BERTLEAMER (100,853) - - (100,853)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HEAEE~EENE - - (339) (339)
Interest element of lease rentals paid HEaENSBENE - - (33) (33)
Interest paid B & - (9,165) - (9,165)
Total changes from financing cash flows REREREEHAT (3,353) (9,165) (372) (12,890)
Other change: Hitt2%
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) B# A (i 556(a)) - 9,165 33 9,198
At 31 December 2022 #2022%12A318 130,481 - 539 131,020
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B ZE2023F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 & &t B & 5 » U B #E37T)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 H{TRFHERESUREMEESRE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) B @
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) ERMEERES MU
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
Within operating cash flows RREFEREAN
- Lease rentals paid relating to short- —HEHEERBEEESE
term leases and leases of low-value- HEERMNENEER
assets Gisk 51 23
17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 17 |RITREMER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans (a) *EERTHBITREMERSE :
comprise:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARETFT
Bank loans: IRITEM -
— Secured by trade and bills —HAEEEHREWRIER
receivables of the Group JFE U 22 45 $E
(Note 17(d)) (B EE17(d)) 298 21,590
- Secured by property, plant and —HAEEYE BEK
equipment of the Group RBEIEIR (MI5E17(d))
(Note 17(d)) 20,000 20,000
— Guaranteed by a subsidiary of —BTFRRER
the Company 30,000 30,000
— Guaranteed by the ultimate —HRAZERGER
controlling party of the Company (Ff$ 5226(b))
(Note 26(b)) - 8,000
- Secured by restricted deposits —BREIEFERIER (HE17(d)
(Note 17(d)) 10,000 -
— Unsecured and unguaranteed —fEREMN - 15,000
60,298 94,590
Add: current portion of long-term /il : EHETREMERKN
bank and other loans BOERER 9> (F¥5E17(b))
(Note 17(b)) 26,988 19,085
87,286 113,675
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17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

17 BITREMER @

(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (b) XEERBARITREMERESIE :
comprise:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
Bank loans: IRITEM
— Guaranteed by a third party and —HBHTFRBMREERS
the ultimate controlling party of 1R (MI5E26(b))
the Company (Note 26(b)) 8,000 10,000
— Guaranteed by a subsidiary of —HE=ZFMREERS
the Company and the ultimate 1R (MI5E26(b))
controlling party of the Company
(Note 26(b)) 9,500 5,000
Other loans: HMER :
- Secured by property, plant and —HAEEYE. BB RKZE
equipment of the Group 48 (MFsE17(d))
(Note 17(d)) 24,291 20,891
41,791 35,891
Less: current portion of long-term B RESRIT R EMERA RN
bank and other loans I (MisE17(a)
(Note 17(a)) (26,988) (19,085)
14,803 16,806
() The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (c) *EEEEERARITREMER
are repayable as follows: mT:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Within 1 year or on demand 1TFERYLEEXR 26,988 19,085
After 1 year but within 2 years 1EBEBR2ER 14,803 13,306
After 2 years but within 3 years 2FEBERIFERN - 3,500
41,791 35,891
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17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 17 |VITREMER @
(d) Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans (d mEEMNEFTRITREMERABAZL
are secured by the following assets of the EEMNUATEEEER
Group:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBT T

Carrying value of secured assets: EEREENIREE

Property, plant and equipment LUEN YL 109,855 108,174
Trade and bills receivables IERZ N ANER =YL L e 298 21,590
Cash at bank RITEMR 5,000 -
115,153 129,764
(e) Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are (e) "EBETROMAEMERE A
subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly ERbesmEBERNEEZH+Y B
found in lending arrangements with financial BN o MAERERZ
institutions. If the Group were to breach the FoHZEERERAREKXRE
covenants, the loans would become repayable B - AEBETETHEREETZS
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its LENBER- BEHEEAEERDE
compliance with these covenants. Further details TRAREBZE—THEBHNKH
of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are £24(b) o R2023FE 12831 H » 1}
set out in Note 24(b). At 31 December 2023, mENREBERBETRAEMERNZ
none of the covenants relating to the bank and 5% (20224 : #) o

other loans had been breached (2022: None).
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18 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

BEZROAREREMSRE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Trade payables B3N RIE 100,716 47,074
Bills payable T 4R 40,721 50,731
141,437 97,805

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date, is

PREEBSRBRNMERBEMNRERFN
—FREEAREREE -

RBREMRENREEZEAHRNEZEN
REREMRBENREDTOT !

as follows:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Less than 3 months 31E B A 66,821 54,144
3 to 6 months 318 B £6@H 39,558 35,848
6 to 12 months 6ERB =128 8 29,734 3,025
Over 1 year 1L E 5,324 4,788
141,437 97,805
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19 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 [& &t B & H fth fE {3 =X 18
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBTT
Payables for staff related costs ETHRMAENRIE 1,582 2,634
Payables for acquisitions of property, BEEME -BERSZE
plant and equipment PRI 13,686 26,755
Payables for other taxes HRIERESHRIE 10,581 6,940
Deposits Re8 & 474 1,140
Others Hih 7,219 5,821
33,542 43,290
All of the accrued expenses and other payables Pt B FE 5t B 2 ;e B M F& 4 "R IE TR 5T 0
are expected to be settled within one year or are —FREERREREE-
repayable on demand.
20 LEASE LIABILITIES 20 HE&RE
The following table shows the remaining contractual FEBRHEEABERAREHRRBTE
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of WREHBRUKRREEZE E KR
the current and previous reporting periods to IFRS 16: SEBF16E BB FGF S A E
W
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT
Within 1 year 1FR 1,395 539
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FERBRER2ER 715 -
2,110 539
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 RESHMBERAERNEER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Movements of current taxation in the (a) MESHBERRAROENEBERIEE S
consolidated statement of financial position HHWMTF -
are set out below:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T

At the beginning of the year REH 560 73
Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FENEE (HE7@) 707 -
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B /BREMRER (16) 2,801
Prepaid income transferred from ENMESREDLE

prepayments AN RIB - (2,314)
At the end of the year REXR 1,251 560
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21 RZEHBURARBVMAER @

21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised: (b) IRERIEEEEIWNT :
The components of deferred tax assets KEETEHMBERREANER
recognised in the consolidated statement of HRIEMRMIBEEENE D R EH
financial position and the movements during the Lo(
year are as follows:
Government
grantsand  Impairment  Impairment
subsequent loss on plant losson  Credit loss Right-of-use Lease
amortisation and machinery inventory allowance Accruals assets liabilities ~ Tax losses Total
HRRBR  BREE
@y HER% #BEAER% FEBRGE EHER GREEE figaf k% i
RMBO0O  RVWB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMBO00  RWB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMBIOO0  RWB'O00  RMB'00O
AEETR AREFfR ARETR ARETR ARETz ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2022 2022181 446 - - 340 256 (198) 310 907 2,061
Creditect/(charged) to the (BEEERZNR) /
consolidated statement of FNGEBER
profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (M37(a) 124 3 2 ¢ (182) 84 (129) 4,376 4,323
At 31 December 2022 and R2022E12831A K
1 January 2023 20231818 570 3 2 33 74 (114) 187 5,283 6,384
Creditect/(charged) to the (BEEERFNR) /
consolidated statement of FNGEBER
profit or loss (Note 7(2) (7)) (110) - (20) 3 32 (430) 316 994 1,187
At 31 December 2023 1220034128318 460 3 - 36 426 (544) 503 6,217 7,521
(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) HMAERHNEERIEE R
Taxable temporary differences relating to the R2023F 12831 HAERESR
undistributed profits of the subsidiaries of the BRIZIBNK BRI NERDIKEHNE
Group established in the PRC amounted to BHNERREREEREAARKE
RMB116,853,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022: 116,853,0007T (20224 : AR
RMB113,572,000), where deferred tax liabilities 118,572,0007t) * EF A ZE
in respect of the PRC Withholding Tax that would i A DR ST R TR0 AR B R Y
be payable on the distributions of these profits, FIERMEBEEEEARAER  FARZ
have not been recognised as the Company KRBEGKEATNRE SR
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries BERMEZZEHMNNTRRKRE
and it has been determined that it is probable AERE DK
that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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DEFERRED INCOME 22 IRIEUT A
2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

At the beginning of the year REH 3,793 2,969
Additions 0 - 1,460
Credited to the consolidated statement of 3t AN&GEEHE

profit or loss (735) (636)
At the end of the year REXR 3,058 3,793
Deferred income represents government grants BIEWAERERAEEYE BEK
received in connection with the construction of the RENEWBTmE MR EMEE
Group’s property, plant and equipment. The grants B BT f6F B E HE o 3 o JRIE WX A EH 1Y
are being amortised over the useful lives of the related GEBERNTEMBAIR AR

assets. Amortisation of deferred income is included in
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EXfERERS

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEZIBPOHIES
The reconciliation between the opening and KERFEEZSTE PN E R
closing balances of each component of the FERGEHENHEEN GO KR E
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the EIE A

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBXx-f#BERBE @

(Continued)

(@) Movements in components of equity (Continued) (a)
Details of the changes of the Company’s

individual components of equity between the

oS (@)
ARBERDBORENEER
RS BEHIUT :

beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Share Share Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
(BHER) /
R RiEE ERffE RERMN aEs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR ARETT ARETT  ARETR ARETR
MNote 23b)  (Note 23(d)i)  (Note 23(d)i)
(zx3b)  (MFsE23())  (MEsE23(d)iv)
At 1 January 2022 1#*20225181A 17,622 96,854 474 3,044 117,894
Changes in equity for the year ~ EZ2022F12A31HLERE
ended
31 December 2022: BEEY .
Loss for the year KERH - - - (778) (778)
Other comprehensive income EREMEARA
for the year - - 5,363 - 5,363
Totel comprefiensive income_____ FNRERMN - o 588 e _____ 4588
At 31 December 2022 and 12022128318 K
1 January 2023 2023%E1A1A
17,522 96,354 5,837 2,266 122,479
Changes in equity for the year ~ EF2023F12B31A L
ended 31 December 2023; EEes:
Loss for the year KEFHE - - - (924) (924)
Other comprehensive income EREfEANA
for the year - - 905 - 905
Toel comprehenshe noome_____ FWREEMA - - % ] o4 (9
Balance at 31 December 2023 ?2023F12A31H 17,522 96,854 6,742 1,342 122,460
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 B#Xx-f#BKEREE @

(Continued)
(b) Share capital (b) BRZ
2023 2022
No. of shares No. of shares
RHHE Rn#E
'000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
T BETT T BETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  SREE0.0TETHEER 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2023 2022
No. of Shares RMB'000  No. of Shares RMB’000
ROYE ARETT Rn#E ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued and BETRAENE &R
fully paid:
At 1 January R1B1H 2,000,000,000 17,522 2,000,000,000 17,522
At 31 December 128318 2,000,000,000 17,522 2,000,000,000 17,522
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBXx-f#BERBE @

(Continued)

(c) Dividends

()

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year
The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB Nil).

No dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved
and paid/payable during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB Nil).

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands as
amended, consolidated or supplemented
from time to time.

Other reserve

The other reserve at 1 January 2017
represented the paid-in capital of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group, namely Xi’an
Tianrui.

In 2017, Xi’an Tianrui reduced its paid-
up in capital from RMB100,000,000 to
RMB50,000,000. The reduction of capital
was used to set-off the amounts due from
the controlling shareholders.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation completed
on 14 November 2017, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group
and accordingly, the paid-in capital of
the PRC subsidiary of the Group was
eliminated against the consideration of
RMB67,500,000 when preparing the
consolidated financial statements.
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(c) BE
()

(i)

FRAETE LG EZRENR
/5
EETEZEZNEZE2023
F128B31HLEEEMNEKE
(2022 : BL) ©

MN&EE2023F 12831 H Lk
FRBEMEIST BN
MEBR LE—BBEEZ
ERHEAAB#EmRENRE
(2022 : AR#Z 7t)

(d) FHENEEREN

(i)

(ii)

BR17EE
RPEBRZEARERNE
B EEMRER2E
EREE (BEE) RE -

Bt
R2017FE1B1HME & E
EAEE—XTEHKNB AT
(BPAEZKRE) MWEHARA

R2017%F > AL R E
A m AR#100,000,000
TREANK®50,000,000
7o o 2Z IR A B9 R L BB A I E
JE U 122 PG BR R Rk I o

RIFEN2017FE11814H 5%
BB AAB A SE
ERBETNSABZERA
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NEMNEBEAEERE L
EVFREFAEBELALEA
R #67,500,0007T M4 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B %5 3R | M 5

HE2023F12A31HIEEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 B#Xx-f#BKEREE @
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iiij) Statutory reserve
In accordance with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to
transfer 10% of its net profit each year
to the statutory reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distributions to equity holders.
This reserve can be utilised in setting off
accumulated losses or increase capital
of the subsidiary and is non-distributable
other than in liquidation.

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
the companies comprising the Group into
the Group’s presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(s).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

(d)

(e)

HENMEERBN (@)

(iii)

(iv)

A

RIEB R RBERRER
AEBK P BN E A
BABERMZEZEREBEH
MAR10%  EEHBEED
EMEARMNE0% M & H
BRERARODEZFEEADIK
AIfFH - Z R A AR
MEBARMNRSEENIEE
BRAEBEIINFETDIKC

B

EREHEEEREFENRE
EEZRATNUHBTRERRE
MEEEEREKELEZF
BONE = 88 o & R 1R 1% MY
FE2(s)FTH 2 Bt BRI -

BEFrERE

FEEEEBEAZTEZENER
EAEEENREFECEEE
RE NMEBRARRERER
WEKRHMPEAERE U RMER
REBARBUBRBERRA -

FEBITHERERREEHE

7R

BoUEEBRSKRRERIE

MTIAEHBEZEREEEKENR
RENEARAERKNEIRE
EEWMEFE > BARRBEAEMR
MNEEHERRBFHAR-
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBXx-f#BERBE @
(Continued)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and bills receivables is limited
because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit standings,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

200 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEXIHSENEHAIRAT

(e)

24 BAFHEE

(a)
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VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2023, 57.3% (2022:
60.4%) of the total trade and bills receivables,
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and
97.5% (2022: 93.8%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
debtors, respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

% RRE
()

(a)

BREMIRARE

EE AR (&)
FAEEEBRNEERBRIESS
EREHNENBERAFEE MIER
EREFRENITE AL X
ErN EERBETERAEER@TR
BRAEZEAHNERABRES P
2023F 12831 H B E WA
TEWZHE4EEE 257.3% ((2022
F 160.4%) F297.5% (20224
93.8%) DRlIAEWAEERAE
BARARKBEHBEAZRIE

AEBHRNEREEBRE-—ETHE
WRREERGETHEREEN
o REFFTEETRELRBER
B HA TR I8 2 5C B K IR B B9
BENUREBIEZERNVAEE
MREEREEMEMBNEER
EAERMNEN -BSEEKRER
EEHHEBIOEIOHANFH - K
EE-—RAWRENEZERERSR

FEERBSNAEAFHNRA
HEEBERZZRFEEZRBK
MERGHNEEGRER BH#H
TEHDEREBEERAESL -
MR AEBRELEEBREERIT
BETTATRMOIERERE LR
AHNBEREREEZEE BALER
BFRARENGERABERRARE
—SENAEBRRTENE P B

i1
= ©
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BIERGEERESHIAEAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%&)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERAMR (&
Trade receivables (Continued) E S EKIE (8)
The following table provides information about TRIZEHBARAERN2023F K
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs 2022F12H31HE RN E S & &
for trade receivables at 31 December 2023 and REZREWRIENTEREEEE
2022: Z2EHK
2023
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

TRHEARS R ER MIREE BR%ERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR®

Ageing analysis of B 5 ERFRIEARE 7947

trade receivables:

Less than 3 months 3B LA 0.5% 96,261 (481)
3 to 6 months 3E61E A 3.0% 16,706 (501)
6 to 12 months 6ZE12(8H 5.0% 14,228 (711)
Over 1 year 1E 100.0% 742 (742)
Total st 127,937 (2,435)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B #EEMBEERESHRIAEAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (48)

(Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(a) EERRKE &

Trade receivables (Continued) EZEIIE (18)
2022
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

BB EE ABRRmEE BiIRER
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT

Ageing analysis of B 5 EUFIEREE 947 ¢
trade receivables:

Less than 3 months 3MEB LA™ 0.5% 55,115 (276)
3 to 6 months 3ZE6@EA 3.0% 15,348 (460)
6 to 12 months 62 121E 8B 5.0% 16,814 (841)
Over 1 year 1E L E 100.0% 627 (627)
Total st 87,904 (2,204)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss EHEEXDENBEILENE
experience over the past recent years. These BEELRBTESE ZEMNX
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between BRAEURBKERE L BIEAMB
economic conditions during the period over HEERT - ErIAR T ARE
which the historic data has been collected, HEKRBEBERAFHAILER R
current conditions and the Group’s view of NEZZENER-

economic conditions over the expected lives of

the receivables.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BIERGEERESHIAEAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%&)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERAMR (&
Trade receivables (Continued) E S EKIE (8)
Movements in the loss allowance account in FREMESBERARENEES
respect of trade receivables during the year are HEERNEHBERAOT
as follows:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AREBFT
Balance at 1 January K1B18 48R 2,204 2,264
Impairment losses provided/(reversed) A& E stig,/ (&E[0]) B E# 2
for the year 231 (60)
Balance at 31 December 12831 B#E 8 2,435 2,204
(b) Liquidity risk (b) FEIEEEMKE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its REBNREETHERREE
liquidity requirements and its compliance with TERERETEERZENE R
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains BMERAEBEFTHBNIRE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate BoOURMETEETRBEBEIRE R
committed lines of funding from major financial MM EAEMEBEE LWnEHE
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in HREPAARBEEEK-

the short and longer term.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B #EEMBEERESHRIAEAAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%&)

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) WENEZREMRE (&)
The following table shows the remaining TRITAEBNETEESHME
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting ERRGZPEXRNRGFSNEHA
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial MR HIRBEEBITARMBIRIBS
liabilities, which are based on contractual T2 (BEETAANEFENF S
undiscounted cash flows (including interest N HELOEEFE > B ERE
payments computed using contractual rates or, HAERNERMNEAE) REEEE
if floating, based on rates current at the end of TRFENEEAHESYE

the reporting period) and the earliest dates the
Group can be required to pay:

2023

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

HESES: Bk i)

More than More than

Within 1 year 2 years

1 year or but less but

on than less than
demand 2 years 3 years Carrying
1ERE BE1EE BR2EE Total amount
BREX DR2E DRRBE st IREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AREBTT ARBTR ARBTR

Bank and other loans 847 R EMER 88,625 15,005 - 103,630 102,089
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,435 749 - 2,184 2,110
Trade and bills REBHER At EN

payables measured B ZEMHRIER

at amortised cost DL 141,437 - - 141,437 141,437

Accrued expenses REBERATEN
and other payables FEstRE X &
measured at HA IR
amortised cost 22,961 -

22,961 22,961

254,458 15,754 270,212 268,597
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 H#HEBEEREREMIAAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REEZRMR (&
2022
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
HESESE R R
More than ~ More than
Within 1 year 2 years
1 year or but less but
on than less than
demand 2 years 3 years Carrying
1ERD HBEIFEE BEE2FERE Total amount
BEXR N NS DIRBE At REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
Bank and other loans R{7TREMER 116,227 13,611 3,638 133,476 130,481
Lease liabilities HEAR 539 - - 539 539
Trade and bills REBHER AT EDN
payables measured  BZEMFIER
at amortised cost P E#& 97,805 - - 97,805 97,805
Accrued expenses B A 2R
and other payables  FEHBEYR
measured at HMELTRIE
amortised cost 36,350 - - 36,350 36,350
250,921 13,611 3,638 268,170 265,175
(c) Interest rate risk (c) #FI=RE M
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily AKEBNMNEZRREIEERBSTE
from interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings BE - BENDRIHNNEREE

issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair

value interest rate risk respectively.
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MERREEREMIAQAAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%&)
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FEREMEE (&)
The following table details the interest rate TRIFAEBNRRSHERNRL
profile of the Group’s total borrowings at the end BEEMEXBEEFE
of the reporting period:
2023 2022
Effective Effective
interest rate Amounts interest rate Amounts
BRH=E &8 LIS t8
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARETR ARBFR
Fixed rate borrowings BEEFZEE
- Lease liabilities -HE&R 6.00-8.10% 2,110 8.10% 539
- Bank loans —RITER 8.75-7.50% 77,798 4.20% - 8.30% 109,590
- Other loans —Hit&® 5.67-11.97% 24,291 6.22% - 9.41% 20,891
Total borrowings RERE 104,199 131,020
Fixed rate borrowings as a BRI X EELABRENE DL
percentage of total borrowings 100% 100%
(d) Currency risk (d) BRI
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily AEBEFFMEE2EEREEEKRK
through receivables and cash balances that BN (MR Z B EH
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a MEEBUN ZEE) JNEZE S
currency other than the functional currency of FEWM BRI AR5 ILIE
the operations to which the transactions relate. BE2EBFERARE N R
The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily FEHFX > AEENMEERR TR
RMB. At the end of the reporting period, the BKo
related risk of the Group is not material.
(e) Fair value measurement (e) DAREFE

Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

FHEAABIIRNEMTRALAE
7R £ B ¥ Y AN 3% 8 AR AN 1 BR B
TR TENKREEREAER20234F
202212831 HM A 2 8 I &
BEARER-
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25 COMMITMENTS 25 KiE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December R2023F12B3 1 HEGKEMBEREE
2023 not provided for in the consolidated financial FEBENARETEREREDOT @

statements were as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AEBTT

Commitments in respect of purchase of BFRABEME - BEXK
property, plant and equipment 5% Y R HE
— Contracted for —B&T4 22,377 9,969

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 EXFBARS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in BRAGEUBRRTEMBOMITED

these consolidated financial statements, the Group ERRIN REBRERNT LU TREE S

entered into below related party transactions during R5e

the year.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEEASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel AEBEBFTEEEASEFMNEIREE
of the Group, including amounts paid to the NEAABIEENHRIE (WK S
Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8 FriE ) REfa TR HMNES
and certain of the highest paid employees as IE GRAN M sEQFT I ER) an -

disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AEBTT

Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 1,184 1,435
Post-employment benefits BREBEH 158 128

1,342 1,563
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” FEM4EENIE T2 ABR (Y
(see Note 6(b)). :¥6(b)) °
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 Z= AR A RS (&)
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related party

Guarantees provided by the ultimate EikEERKZTR FIREN
controlling party of the Company at iR CEE17)

end of the year (Note 17)

(b)

iR Bk 32 5
2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT

17,500 23,000

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2023 falls
under the definition of connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(c)

EFRABXZ EHmRNZERM

B E2023F12831HIEFE £t
A S HES A EHREE
UAEFTATHEB S AFER

BRXENERES -
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27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 27 ARE@mZHBRIR

POSITION
2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT ANEBEF T
Non-current asset ERHFEE
Investment in a subsidiary ~ RHMBARZ&A 2 67,456 67,456
Current assets MEMEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUR — BB B A B 2 T8 54,332 54,787
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEES 672 236
Net currentassets ~  =“H&EEF&E 0000 55,004 55,023
NET ASSETS BEFEH 122,460 122,479
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGEE 23
Share capital B 4s 17,522 17,522
Reserves H#E 104,938 104,957
TOTAL EQUITY ¥ 4EER 122,460 122,479

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of EEEN2024F 3280 #ib &I 1% #E

directors on 28 March 2024. FI) 8 o

Hou Jianli Xu Yunhua
=ERN FEE
Chairman Director
FE EE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 & &t B5& S » ¥ LU N B 6 51 7T)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
holding company of the Company at 31 December
2023 to be H&C Group Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling
party of the Company at 31 December 2023 to be Mr.
Hou Jianli and Ms. Chen Bierui. H&C Group Holding
Limited does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

28

29

ERERRRERA
KABEERH > R2023F12831
BAASBNEREZEFNFARNEBE X
BEESEMALILAIHAC Group Holding
Limited° #2023F12HA31 HA A A
BRREFERBERMNELE RE R X
+ cH&C Group Holding Limitedil #&
EHEBHRRELIRER-

B F£2023F12H31HILEFECHE
HEMREMNEITA  FEL K
RENAREEZE

HEAMBRKATIEBH HE g
AEETEEMS BB A ELEE]
EHE2023F12831HNEFEE R KE
Mo BEAREAMBREFPHERB-HE
ERY AR A EEBREE ¢

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M 53R | M5

B ZE2023F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 & &t B & 5 » U B #E37T)

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 29 # FZ2023F12831HLEEEME

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED fERREMIETA ~ FTER K
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR 2EBENAEEE @

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTHBEBAHZE
B E AR ER
Amendments to |IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current (“2020 amendments”) 1 January 2024
BIPRE st ERE1SE 2 Bs] HEEB DB MBI w8 2024%F1H1H
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current 1 January 2024
liabilities with covenants (“2022 amendments”)
BPR & st R FASk 28] » W B A IE B FE B & 18 2024%F181H
Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
MBIREERFEI16R 2B ERMOIFHHAEEE 20241818
Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7, Financial 1 January 2024
Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements
BIR S st ERETS—HEe nEXNE ARG ERFZ7—FM TR 2024F181H
B REREMEZHAIEST
Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: 1 January 2025
Lack of exchangeability
BIR G st ERF21R— I EEEFE I ZE 1A= o] B EAIEET 2025%181H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment REBEFGZEZEET R ZER TERH
of what the impact of these developments is expected REXREBHEBEHNEE 25 2EH
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has % ERZEEE] K& R K gEH
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to GEVBERRERNEATZE -
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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